

05/16/2024

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

CITY OF DETROIT
BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS MEETING
May 16, 2024 at 3:00 P.M.

1 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Good afternoon. It is now 3:00
 2 PM, and so we want to begin this week's meeting of the
 3 Detroit Board of Police Commissioners. We will do so as
 4 we do every week with the Board of Invocation not having
 5 a chaplain sign today. I'm going to ask that Commissioner
 6 Woods open us up with a word of prayer.
 7 COMMISSIONER WOODS: All minds clear, eternal God,
 8 creator of all things, we thank you for your love, we
 9 thank you for your mercy; we thank you for the citizens
 10 of the City of Detroit. We thank you for the Board of
 11 Police Commissioners. Lord, we ask you to use us to be
 12 able to minister to the needs of those who are crying out
 13 for help. We ask you to bless all the citizens. We ask
 14 you to bless the leadership of the City of Detroit and
 15 continue to give us the wisdom that we need to continue
 16 to be able to do your work. And your name we pray, amen.
 17 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Amen. With that, we'll now
 18 move to our introduction of Commissioners by Acting
 19 Secretary Brown.
 20 MR. BROWN: Chairperson Pressley - Here.
 21 MR. BROWN: Vice Chairperson Smith - Here.
 22 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Linda Bernard - Attorney
 23 Linda Bernard, present, District 2, sorry.
 24 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Banks - Present.
 25 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Bell - Present, District 4.

1 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Burton -
 2 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Carter -
 3 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Moore - asked for an excused
 4 absence.
 5 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Hernandez - Present.
 6 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Woods - Present.
 7 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Alright. With that, we do
 8 indeed have a quorum. I will now move on to the approval
 9 of the May 16th, 2024 agenda.
 10 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Did anyone acknowledge
 11 Commissioner Banks?
 12 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes, you were acknowledged as
 13 you were walking in.
 14 COMMISSIONER BANKS: I'm sorry, I'm sorry Mr. Chair.
 15 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: No problem at all. I have you
 16 here. Moving on to the approval of the May 16th, 2024
 17 agenda. I'm going to ask that we amend this agenda noting
 18 that we have several closed sessions today. I'm going to
 19 ask if it is okay with the board that we push the Human
 20 Resources Bureau presentation as well as the BOPC budget
 21 actuals to next week. Is there any objection to the
 22 amendments?
 23 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: So moved.
 24 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Support.
 25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Okay. So hearing no objection

1 again, the Chair entertains a motion to approve the
 2 agenda for May 16, 2024, with that change.
 3 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: You don't need to...
 4 DR. JACKSON: The motion is to postpone. You said
 5 push, but it should be postponed to next week. Thank you,
 6 Mr. Chair.
 7 Okay. So the Chair first entertains a motion to
 8 postpone the Human Resources Bureau and BOPC budget
 9 actuals to next week.
 10 COMMISSIONER WOODS: So move.
 11 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Second.
 12 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: It's been properly moved and
 13 second. All those in favor please signify by saying, Aye.
 14 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
 15 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All those opposed? No. The
 16 Ayes have it. And so now we move on to the approval of
 17 the May 16th, 2024 agenda with that amendment. Is there
 18 any objection? Hearing none, the agenda is approved. And
 19 next we'll move on to the approval of the minutes or May
 20 9th, 2024. Is there any objection to the approval of the
 21 minutes? Hearing none, the minutes are approved. We now
 22 will move on to the introduction of BOPC Staff, Chief of
 23 Police, Elected Officials, Representatives, and Community
 24 Leaders by Acting Secretary Brown.
 25 MR. BROWN: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair. Currently we

1 have parliamentarian Dr. Francis Jackson, Chief
 2 Investigator Warfield, Attorney Stephanie LaBelle, Ms.
 3 Candace Hayes, Ms. Jonya Underwood, Ms. Jasmine Taylor,
 4 Ms. Teresa Blossom, Interim Supervising Investigator
 5 Elgin Murphy, Supervising Investigator Ainsley Cromwell,
 6 Investigator Ellen Count, DPD HR Director Katrina
 7 Patillo, Mr. Drew Fries, Mr. Don Handyside, Media Service
 8 is doing the video, and Sergeant Quinn is doing the
 9 audio. Sitting in for the Chief is Deputy Chief Mark
 10 Bliss. Elected Officials are Mr. Marie Overall, Office of
 11 State Representative Tyrone Carter, Mr. LaDon Davis,
 12 Office of Councilman Fred Durhal II, and that's it, Mr.
 13 Chair.
 14 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All right. Thank you. We are
 15 grateful for everyone's attendance at today's meeting.
 16 Next we'll move on to the Board of Police Commissioner's
 17 Officers report, where we have a Resolution honoring
 18 Captain Brian Bowser who is retiring Vice Chair Liberty
 19 Smith will read that Resolution into our archives?
 20 VICE CHAIR SMITH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The
 21 Resolution honoring Captain Brian Bowser.
 22 WHEREAS Brian P. Bowser was appointed to the Detroit
 23 Police Department on September 30th, 1996. Upon
 24 graduating from the Detroit Metropolitan Police Academy,
 25 Officer Bowser began his career at the 8th Precinct; and

1 WHEREAS: Officer Bowser displayed tremendous
2 knowledge and leadership skills as a police officer and
3 was promoted to the rank of Sergeant on October 27th,
4 2000. As Sergeant, his assignments were the 10th Precinct
5 and Western District in 2005. On October 20th, 2008, he
6 was transferred to Homicide Section where he was an
7 investigative sergeant, team leader of the City of
8 Detroit homicide. In July, 2015, he was assigned to Gang
9 Intelligence Surveillance, and in August, 2016, assigned
10 to Investigative Operations, West; and

11 WHEREAS Sergeant Bowser was promoted to the rank of
12 Lieutenant on July 30th, 2018, and returned to Homicide
13 until May, 2019, where he transferred from Task Force
14 Administration. On April 1st, 2022, Lieutenant Bowser was
15 appointed to captain and remained at the 8th Precinct as
16 the Precinct's captain; and

17 WHEREAS Captain Bowser was a deserving recipient of
18 the following awards: Chief's Unit Award, Citations, 2014
19 Ford Fireworks Award, All-Star Game Award, Rosa Parks
20 Funeral Award, Conclusion of Consent Award, Confinement
21 Judgment Award, XL Super Bowl Award, and other
22 Certificates of Appreciation; and

23 WHEREAS Captain Bowser has tirelessly served the
24 Detroit Police Department, the citizens of Detroit, and
25 its neighboring communities, for almost 26 years, he has

1 served the Detroit Police Department and the citizens of
2 the City of Detroit with loyalty, professionalism,
3 integrity, and dedication, and is widely respected
4 throughout the law enforcement community as a consummate
5 professional.

6 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED

7 That the Detroit Board of Police Commissioners,
8 speaking on behalf of the citizens of the great City of
9 Detroit, recognizes and honors the lifelong contributions
10 and commitment to excellence in public service to Captain
11 Brian P. Bowser; his display of courage and unwavering
12 community spirit has improved the quality of life for the
13 citizens of Detroit. We wish you the best in your future
14 endeavors. We thank and congratulate you, Captain P.
15 Bowser.

16 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: The Chair entertains a motion
17 to adopt his Resolution into our archives.

18 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: So moved.

19 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Support.

20 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: It's been properly moved and
21 seconded. Is there any discussion? Hearing no discussion,
22 all those in favor, please signify by saying, Aye.

23 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

24 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All those opposed? No. The
25 Ayes have it. That Resolution is adopted. Now we'll move

1 on to the Chief of Police Report, and DC Bliss will make
2 that presentation.

3 DC BLISS: Good afternoon. I'm going to start with
4 the update on injured officers. We currently have no
5 critically injured officers due to on-duty injuries.

th

6 Moving on to crime data as of May 15 , Homicides, we are
7 down 22%; non-fatal shootings, we are down to 27%;
8 robberies, we are down 29%. Total part one violent crime,
9 we are down 12%; carjacking, we are down 52%. Our drag
10 racing and drifting enforcement for the weekend of May
11 10th through May 12th, we investigated 35 individuals, we
12 had nine traffic stops; we issued 3 traffic citations; we
13 investigated 15 vehicles; we impounded 8 of them, and we
14 issued 6 spectator tickets and we seized 6 cell phones.

15 Moving on to mental health related calls for
16 service. Overall for the past 7 days, we had 98 mental,
17 not violent calls for service for a total of 80 were
18 serviced; mental, violent armed, we had 25 for calls for
19 service, and we serviced 22 of them; mental violent, not
20 armed, 124 calls, and we serviced 105; suicide in
21 progress calls, we had 36 and we serviced 34. And suicide
22 threat, we had 61 and we serviced 53 for a grand total of
23 344 calls for service. And we serviced 294. Overall calls
24 for service this year to date in 2023, we had 5,922, and
25 currently, we have 6,249. Service calls. In 2023 year to

1 date, we had 5,281, and in 2024, we had 5,476. Overdose
2 related calls. In the last 7 days, we had 190 calls for
3 service and we serviced 130. Overall calls for service,
4 year to date. In 2023, we had 2,595. Currently we have
5 2,559. Overall service calls in 2023 year to date, we had
6 1,941, and in 2024, 1,832. Significant incidents. Number
7 one, a non-fatal shooting. On Thursday, May 9th at 12:10
8 AM, officers were dispatched to the 9300 block of Van
9 Dyke to investigate a non-fatal shooting. Officers
10 arrived at the scene and observed the victim suffering
11 from a gunshot wound to the back. Medic 14 transported
12 the victim to Detroit Receiving Hospital, where the
13 victim was listed in stable condition. The victim stated
14 he was shot in the house in the 20000 block of Geneva,
15 and that after the shooting, he was placed in a vehicle
16 and dropped off in the street at Van Dyke and Neff.

17 Detectives from the 12th Precinct shooting team were
18 notified and responded to the scene. Officers checked the
19 area and were not successful in locating a crime scene.

20 Detectives re-interviewed the victim who was unable
21 to provide any additional information. Detectives are now
22 attempting to determine the identification of the suspect
23 and the circumstances surrounding the incident.

24 Detectives are asking anyone with additional information
25 regarding this incident to contact Crime stoppers at 1-

1 800-SPEAKUP or DetroitRewards.tv. Incident number two.
2 Double nonfatal shooting of a 14 and 17-year-old victim.
3 On Friday, May 10th, at 9:18 PM, officers were dispatched
4 to the 500 block of West Street to investigate a double
5 non-fatal shooting. Officers arrived at the scene and
6 observed the victims at Erskine and Beaubien before being
7 treated by medics. Victim number one, a 14-year-old male
8 received one gunshot wound to the left leg. He was
9 transported to Children's Hospital by Medic 8, and listed
10 in stable condition. Victim number two, a 17-year-old
11 male was shot in the right index finger. He was
12 transported to Children's Hospital and listed in stable
13 condition.

14 Both victims stated they were walking in the area of
15 500 West Street in the Brewster Homes, when someone in a
16 white SUV started firing shots at them. Both victims were
17 shot as they ran away from the SUV. The officers from the
18 7th Precinct preserved the scene and notified detectives
19 from the 7th Precinct shooting team. Detectives
20 determined that individuals driving in the white Dodge
21 Durango were chasing the victims, firing shots at the
22 suspects from a pistol that appeared to be firing like an
23 automatic weapon. The vehicle was last seen driving East
24 on Mack, then onto I net I 75 Service drive at a high
25 rate of speed. The incident is still under investigation.

1 Detectives are asking anyone with additional information
2 regarding this incident to contact Crime Stoppers at 1-
3 800-SPEAKUP or Detroit Rewards TV. Critical vehicle
4 accident. Police Pursuit. On Monday, May 13th at 8:31 PM,
5 officers were dispatched to the 19000 block of James
6 Couzins to assist the Southfield Police Department with a
7 critical accident resulting from a police pursuit.

8 Officers arrived on the scene and learned that
9 Southfield Police were pursuing a white 2020 Chevy Blazer
10 occupied by a suspect wanted for homicide. During the
11 vehicle pursuit, the wanted vehicle disregarded a red
12 light while traveling south on the Lodge Service drive at
13 Outer Drive. The white Chevy Blazer then struck a 2023
14 gray Kia traveling East on West Outer Drive. After the
15 incident, the driver of the white Chevy Blazer exited the
16 vehicle and began to flee Southfield officers on foot.
17 Southfield officers apprehended him after a short foot
18 chase. The suspect received minor cuts from the accident
19 and was arrested at the scene by Southfield PD. The
20 homicide suspect was in the passenger seat at the time of
21 the accident. He suffered a broken right arm and was
22 arrested at the scene by Southfield PD. Two additional
23 passengers in the white Blazer were transported to Sinai
24 Grace Hospital by medics and were listed in temporary
25 serious condition with minor injuries.

1 The driver of the 2023 Gray Kia suffered minor
2 injuries, and was transported to Sinai Grace Hospital by
3 medics and listed in temporary serious condition. The
4 passenger of the gray Kia was ejected from the vehicle
5 and suffered a punctured lung. The victim was transported
6 to Sinai Grace Hospital and listed in critical condition.
7 Officers from the 12th Precinct preserved the scene and
8 detectives from the fatal squad were notified. Detectives
9 determined that Southfield Police were attempting to
10 conduct a traffic stop of the vehicle to investigate the
11 passenger who was wanted for a homicide out of
12 Southfield, Michigan. The vehicle drove away from
13 Southfield Police at a high rate of speed South on the
14 Lodge service drive, causing the vehicle accident as
15 described. Detectives from the fatal squad are preparing
16 a warrant to be submitted to the Wayne County
17 Prosecutor's office for review. Incident number four,
18 non-fatal shooting. On Sunday, May 12th at 1:53 PM,
19 officers were dispatched to the 10000 block of Knodell to
20 investigate a non-fatal shooting.

21 Officers arrived on the scene and observed the
22 victim suffering from several gunshot wounds. Officers
23 provided medical aid until Medic 13 arrived at the scene.
24 Medics transported the victim to Ascension St. John
25 Hospital where he was listed in stable condition.

1 Witnesses stated that the suspect who shot the victim was
2 still in the area and that he was in the house across the
3 street. Witnesses also reported hearing the victim and
4 suspect arguing, and then hearing several shots fired.
5 Witnesses further reported seeing both the victim and the
6 suspect with handguns before the shooting. The suspect
7 then walked outside to the officers and made an excited
8 utterance regarding the shooting. Officers at the scene
9 arrested the suspect and transported him to the Detroit
10 Detention Center without further incident. Officers from
11 the 5th Precinct preserved the scene and detectives from
12 the 5th Precinct Detective Unit were notified. Detectives
13 determined that the victim and suspect were neighbors who
14 had a long history of arguing about the suspect parking
15 vehicles in the vacant lot next to the victim's home. On
16 Monday, May 13th, detectives submitted a warrant to the
17 Wayne County Prosecutor's office for review. The warrant
18 is still being reviewed. Incident number 5, fatal
19 shooting. On Sunday, May 12th at 1:12 AM, officers were
20 dispatched to the 8200 block of Greenview to investigate
21 a fatal shooting. Officers arrived at the scene and
22 observed the victim in the passenger seat of a 2022 Ford
23 Edge, suffering from a gunshot wound to the left thigh.
24 The victim was transported to Beaumont Hospital by Medic
25 54, where he was pronounced deceased. Witnesses at the

1 scene stated that the suspect was inside the home.
 2 Officers secured the house and ordered the suspect to
 3 come out. The suspect came out of the home and was
 4 arrested by officers. Officers from the 8th Precinct
 5 preserved the scene and detectives from the Homicide
 6 Section were notified. Detectives determined that the
 7 victim and suspect were arguing before the shooting.
 8 The victim got into the black Ford to leave the
 9 location and was shot by the suspect. A warrant was
 10 submitted to the Wayne County Prosecutor's Office for
 11 review. The warrant was signed and on Tuesday, May 14th,
 12 the suspect was arraigned in 36 District Court on the
 13 following charges: homicide, murder, second degree
 14 weapons felony firearm, the suspect is being held at the
 15 Wayne County Jail without bond. Incident number 6, fatal
 16 vehicle accident. Police pursuit. On Wednesday, May 15th,
 17 at 12:35 PM officers were dispatched to the 1800 block of
 18 East Outer Drive to assist the Warren Police Department
 19 on a fatal accident resulting from a police pursuit.
 20 Officers arrived on the scene and learned that Warren
 21 Police were chasing a black 2011 Chevy Malibu. When the
 22 vehicle lost control and the suspect was ejected from the
 23 vehicle. The suspect was observed lying face down on the
 24 sidewalk, suffering from multiple injuries.
 25 Medic 56 arrived at the scene and pronounced the

1 suspect deceased. Officers from the 11th Precinct
 2 preserved the scene, and detectives from Homicide and
 3 Fatal Squad were notified. Detectives determined that
 4 Warren Police attempted to conduct a traffic stop of the
 5 vehicle at East 8 Mile and Sherwood, when the vehicle
 6 took off at a high rate of speed toward East Outer, and
 7 lost control, causing the vehicle accident. On a positive
 8 note, Motor Safety and Education Course. On Friday, May
 9 17th from 9:00 AM to 5:00 PM in the Skylar room at Public
 10 Safety Headquarters, our Harbor Master Unit and the
 11 Detroit Coast Guard will hold an educational boater
 12 safety course. Participants will receive a boater safety
 13 card and certificate after completing the program. Annual
 14 Bowling fundraiser on Saturday, May 18th from 1:00 PM to
 15 5:00 PM, the Public Safety Foundation is holding its
 16 annual DPD bowling fundraiser, at Mary Bowl Bowling
 17 Center in Livonia. Proceeds will go towards our community
 18 outreach programs. Finally, National Police Week events.
 19 Our precincts are holding several events for National
 20 Police Week. Information regarding the events is
 21 available on each precinct's Facebook page. That
 22 concludes my report out.
 23 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Are there any
 24 questions or comments? Commissioner Bernard?
 25 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Yes. Deputy Chief, there were

1 two incidents that you reviewed that involved a chase in
 2 Detroit by officers that were not Detroit officers that
 3 were from the suburbs, both Southfield and you said
 4 Warren. In the City of Detroit, we have a no chase
 5 policy. We don't do that. So how come they're allowed to
 6 do that in Detroit
 7 DC BLISS: Through the Chair. So first, it's not that
 8 the Detroit police has a no chase policy. We just have
 9 certain stipulations that we allow our members to pursue
 10 a vehicle. So that it's not a no chase. In certain
 11 instances we can, but it's not a blanket policy that you
 12 can't chase, period.
 13 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: But it is my understanding
 14 that high speed chases are not allowed in Detroit. And
 15 I'm proud of that, quite frankly. So my question again is
 16 how come Southfield can come into Detroit and how come
 17 Warren police can come into Detroit and do it and lives
 18 are lost?
 19 DC BLISS: Through the Chair. So we don't regulate
 20 the policies of Southfield PD or Warren PD. And if
 21 they're in pursuit of a serious felony or whatever their
 22 policy allows, they can pursue. We can't stop them at the
 23 city limits and say, well, you fall under our policy,
 24 whatever they're asking them for, as long as it is within
 25 their jurisdiction, they can continue and be in hot

1 pursuit. So they are allowed to go into the City of
 2 Detroit, just like they're allowed to continue to pursue
 3 and go into the City of Ann Arbor or however long they
 4 would like to continue that pursuit. But we can't stop
 5 them and say, well, you can't pursue it here.
 6 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I think we can do that through
 7 an understanding or an agreement with our sister
 8 communities. And we can also agree not to pursue people
 9 within their jurisdiction. Obviously, either are not good
 10 drivers or these were very, very precarious; a very, very
 11 precarious situation. Our citizens could have been badly
 12 hurt and they were, in fact, I'm sure they were
 13 Detroiters that you say were ultimately arrested. I
 14 understand that they were committing a crime, but it puts
 15 everybody at risk and that's not acceptable. And I wish
 16 you raised the issue with the Chief for me, or I'll raise
 17 it with him, because we need to have some kind of
 18 understanding that we don't have Wyatt Herb type activity
 19 in Detroit. They may do that in their city, but we don't
 20 do that or allow it in our city. So I want to talk to
 21 him, or you can talk to him. I'll call him myself. But
 22 that's very disturbing to me. There were a lot of
 23 injuries and even a death as you said. So this is a
 24 problem. Thank you.
 25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Hernandez. Thank

1 you. I don't know if my mic is actually working or not.
 2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: It's on.
 3 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: You can hear.
 4 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes.
 5 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: I was actually interested in
 6 asking a very similar question that Commissioner Bernard
 7 just asked. I think I might be on the opposite side of
 8 that thought process. We might unintentionally create the
 9 thought process that Detroit might be a haven for those
 10 who, who are allegedly wrongdoing to come into our city
 11 and hide out eventually, because they know that outside
 12 agencies are just going to cut pursuit. So I think it's
 13 worth, you know, bringing up the topic, and having that
 14 conversation. I would just suggest that there's a
 15 collective mindset that might be able to have that
 16 discussion, including BOPC. And then just, again,
 17 possibly a solution. But I would be concerned that we
 18 would start bringing in that kind of attention to our
 19 city.
 20 DC BLISS: Understood.
 21 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Any further questions? In that
 22 same vein the two pursuits were the infractions those
 23 that would have allowed pursuits had it started in
 24 Detroit,
 25 DC BLISS: Through the Chair, it's my understanding

1 that they're both homicides, they're homicide suspects.
 2 So those are violent felonies.
 3 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: And so, according to our
 4 policy in Detroit, I just wanted to be clear as
 5 Commissioner Bernard characterized it, those would still
 6 be incidences where DPD would pursue an individual if
 7 they were alleged to have committed a homicide
 8 DC BLISS: Through the Chair. So for one of them it
 9 was a homicide, for the second one, it was a traffic stop
 10 that they just continued their pursuit.
 11 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Okay. So we don't do traffic
 12 stops.
 13 DC BLISS: Correct.
 14 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: But homicides for homicides
 15 for a violent felony, yes, but for regular traffic, no,
 16 we do not.
 17 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Bernard. It's
 18 been very clear for some time because of the tremendous
 19 liability that Detroit has had in the past legally from
 20 litigation involving hot pursuits that we weren't doing
 21 it. And I've heard the Chief say it. He said, we can find
 22 them. They have helicopters, they have all kinds of
 23 stuff, you know, we can find the person. We don't have to
 24 pursue them like that at that time. And because of the
 25 issues that we've had in Detroit in the past, and of

1 course you're familiar with them since you've been here a
 2 while. So I don't understand. But we do need some
 3 clarification.
 4 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yeah. And the only thing we
 5 are emphasizing here is that you're correct when it comes
 6 to nonviolent traffic violations that the Chief is
 7 suggesting, we don't do pursuits. But if there is a
 8 person who, again, who is alleged to commit a homicide
 9 then obviously under discretion of the officers, there's
 10 some expectation that we keep pursuit of those
 11 individuals.
 12 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: That's not my understanding,
 13 Mr. Chairman, we can both find out, right?
 14 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: DC Bliss just communicated
 15 that and we can get clarification on that matter.
 16 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Because somebody's already
 17 dead, and why should I be dead because that person's dead
 18 because you're pursuing them? No.
 19 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Well, you don't know whether
 20 or not that individual is done with their acts of
 21 violence.
 22 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Yeah, but I'm an innocent
 23 person, so why should I be subject to people going 80
 24 miles an hour? You know, while you're trying to get
 25 somebody, you can get them. You're going to get them.

1 We're going to get them. No question about that.
 2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Okay. Well again, we'll
 3 postpone that conversation until we get further clarity
 4 from DPD. Any further questions for the Chief? Hearing
 5 none again, thank you for your report. At this time we
 6 will now move to oral communication.
 7 MS. UNDERWOOD: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair.
 8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Good afternoon.
 9 MS. UNDERWOOD: We have 7 speakers. Our first speaker
 10 will be Ms. Charnita Williams, then Ms. Bernice Smith,
 11 and then Dr. Gordon.
 12 MS. WILLIAMS: Hello everyone.
 13 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Hello.
 14 MS. WILLIAMS: I realized last week the reason that
 15 police officers are covering up my rape is because they
 16 are involved in this. The man that raped me, like I
 17 stated last week, they are giving out gift cards,
 18 DoorDash, and Cash app. The man who raped me had received
 19 a gift card for \$200. And I came to OCI to report this
 20 Tuesday. It's been going on. It happened the first of the
 21 year in 5 months. So when police officers are involved in
 22 covering up my rape, that's conspiracy. You conspire to
 23 cover up anything that's illegal. It's a conspiracy. And
 24 how can you be a police officer with a badge and took an
 25 oath and you participating in illegal activities like

1 this? I've been speaking about this for quite some time,
 2 and I'm going to continue to speak about it until
 3 somebody does something about it.
 4 So, at this time, I cannot understand how a woman
 5 can get raped, and it's okay. You tell them it's okay. I
 6 live in the shelter, while drones are all over the
 7 shelter where I stay at, and helicopters are flying all
 8 over. If your house is in order, you don't have to get it
 9 clean. So if you can't clean it up, you should burn it
 10 down. At the end of the day, like I said, I'm not going
 11 to let this continue on like this, and you all do not do
 12 your job. We sit here and we listen to it. All this
 13 stuff, like, Coleman Young made this because what the
 14 police officers were doing, illegal not to hear all these
 15 reports. I had to sit here almost two weeks ago when you
 16 guys were doing interviews. That's not acceptable,
 17 period. When my life, my body was violated, and police
 18 officers are giving people gift cards and DoorDash to
 19 keep an eye on me.
 20 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Next speaker.
 21 MS. SMITH: Good afternoon to my commissioners.
 22 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Good afternoon.
 23 MS. SMITH: I did some investigating after the
 24 mayor's speech last month. And in particular it was in my
 25 son's neighborhood that I had to do some investigating. I

1 talked to the Commander, Deputy Chief in regards to it,
 2 because I don't want to put it public because it's in
 3 regards to a dope house. So we're going to take care of
 4 it. And also the trucks that are parked in the sideways
 5 of the yard and so forth. So we're going to do that. In
 6 the meantime, I want all of you to know I'm going to be
 7 92 next week. The good Lord has seen to it that I have
 8 lived this long and I'm very grateful. And I just want
 9 most of you to live a good life, like I tried to live.
 10 I'm not perfect. But I just want you all to know God is
 11 good and he will take care of you as long as you are
 12 decent and respectful.
 13 I cannot understand why we do have the question
 14 about the pursuit. This is our city. And the fact that
 15 they are coming into our city. When you see the race
 16 coming through or anything, you get the heck out of the
 17 way. You don't stand there and look and see the police
 18 coming through. You get out of the way. That's what I
 19 would do. And I would think people would do the same
 20 thing. Also, we have a family dinner every Sunday and
 21 Woods, one of these days, we would like for you to come.
 22 It's 10 of us. My children are there and two of the
 23 friends of my sons that went to school with them. We had
 24 a good discussion, especially about the police department
 25 and my commission here. So I just want to let you know

1 it's very, very furious because of the fact they get on
 2 me because I attend here and I bring the message back to
 3 them what we are doing here at our meetings. And it's a
 4 good response. But I do want to let you know I'm in favor
 5 of the police taking care of this matter for me. I think
 6 they will because we don't allow no drug dealers in our
 7 neighborhood. At least
 8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Your time.
 9 MS. SMITH: When I was there. So I thank you for your
 10 time and hope this will be taken care of. Thank you.
 11 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. And happy early
 12 birthday. 92 years young. Beautiful.
 13 MS. GORDON: Hi, my name is Karen Gordon and I've
 14 been down here about a year ago, 6 months about the 7th
 15 Precinct. I've been trying to get an appointment to see
 16 the captain and the commander with no avail. I haven't
 17 been able to. I have had police reports that have not
 18 been filled out because detectives don't want to do their
 19 job and they don't feel that they should have to fill out
 20 anything because I already have one. Then I have a limit.
 21 And then they tell me that when I show them a weapon,
 22 when they come out, they tell me they can't go on private
 23 property for the weapon that tore up my home. And then I
 24 have video to show the woman tearing up my property. Then
 25 the police tell me they can't arrest her because they are

1 waiting on a shooting. So I need some clarity. What do
 2 the cops do? My home has been torn for 2 years and I
 3 haven't done anything to retaliate on these people, on
 4 both sides and across me. And yet still the police did
 5 nothing when they came out, other than to talk to them.
 6 My property is torn up.
 7 I have video of it, and then the police and the
 8 commander, like I told a woman down here, I don't know if
 9 she's here today. It starts at the head. The commander
 10 don't give a
 11 shit.
 12 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Language, please.
 13 MS. GORDON: It's freedom of speech, isn't it? That's
 14 when the police cuss. When anybody else on the job can
 15 cuss, but the cops can cuss. So I can't cuss? Okay?
 16 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Cops can't cuss.
 17 MS. GORDON: But they do cuss.
 18 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: And they're written up on it
 19 every time.
 20 MS. GORDON: Okay? And nothing happened, or you get
 21 written up and nothing happens. Come on, now. I've been
 22 hung up on by the police by asking questions, and like I
 23 said, the 7th Precinct, well self and full of love. He
 24 did try to help, but they moved him and arrested them.
 25 Too many of them are assholes.

1 DC BLISS: Excuse me.
 2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Oh, that's your time.
 3 MS. GORDON: I didn't mean to say assholes.
 4 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: That's your time. DC Bliss,
 5 did you have something you wanted to say?
 6 DC BLISS: Yes, ma'am. If you can get me your contact
 7 information, I will make sure that you have a meeting and
 8 speak to the commander and the captain.
 9 MS. GORDON: I've been told no four times from down
 10 here...
 11 DC BLISS: You will have it.
 12 MS. GORDON: Here, but one other guy was where the
 13 woman was.
 14 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Alright, thank you.
 15 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair.
 16 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes. Commissioner Burton.
 17 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Can someone from OCI talk to
 18 her? She came to the Board of Police Commissioner's
 19 meeting and she shared her concerns. I think a member of
 20 our board should be able to talk with her.
 21 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Is that your request,
 22 Commissioner Burton? Next public speaker.
 23 MS. UNDERWOOD: Sir. The next speaker will be Koren
 24 Crowley, and after her Darrice Cain. And then we'll go
 25 into Zoom. I mean, and excuse me, Minister Eric Blount.

1 Then we'll go into Zoom.
 2 MS. CROWLEY: I don't know how this really works.
 3 This is my first time.
 4 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Can you speak louder, please?
 5 MS. CROWLEY: I don't know how this really works as
 6 I'm supposed to explain my situation or...?
 7 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yep. You have 2 minutes to
 8 share whatever it is that you would like to do with the
 9 commission.
 10 COMMISSIONER WOODS: Can we restart the clock for
 11 her?
 12 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: At the Chair's discretion. Go
 13 right ahead.
 14 MS. UNDERWOOD: This is one of the applicants. I
 15 thought she wanted to do public
 16 speaking.
 17 MS. GORDON: Oh, no.
 18 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Oh, okay. So you're on later
 19 for the agenda.
 20 MS. GORDON: Yeah.
 21 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: No problem.
 22 MS. UNDERWOOD: Same thing, Mr. Blount. Minister
 23 Blount, excuse me.
 24 MINISTER BLOUNT: Good afternoon board.
 25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Good afternoon.

1 MINISTER BLOUNT: Chairperson Pressley, I hold you
 2 responsible for the corruption on this agenda. A
 3 resolution honoring a police officer. Police officers are
 4 not the board's employees. Why do we waste time honoring
 5 what's next? Dog catchers or flight attendants? I don't
 6 know what, but yet we sit here and listen to not one, not
 7 two, but six reports of crime. Not a single word about
 8 police officer misconduct. And no commissioner asked the
 9 head of the police department any questions about police
 10 officer misconduct. It's just extremely frustrating
 11 knowing that the risk management system has over a
 12 hundred police officers that have been identified as
 13 highly probable of perpetrating misconduct. Where is that
 14 discussion at all? And so with the HR report today,
 15 hopefully they do say something about the risk management
 16 system designed by the police department to detect police
 17 officers who have behavior that is indicative of future
 18 misconduct. Lastly, Roy Gamble and Byran Ferguson have
 19 shown how to resign from this board. So anyone who is
 20 uncomfortable with the corruption on this board should
 21 have two good examples of how just to walk away. Linda
 22 Bernard, if you choose to, I think it will be a good
 23 idea. I don't care who is a commissioner. I just want a
 24 good one.
 25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Commissioner

1 Bernard.
 2 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I'm an outstanding
 3 commissioner. While we're on the subject, it's
 4 unfortunate that you can't see that because you are
 5 obsessed with me for some reason, and that has been clear
 6 for more than a year. So please do whatever you can. You
 7 may need medication, I don't know what you need, but you
 8 need to do something.
 9 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Point of order. Point of order.
 10 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Let the record reflect that.
 11 Commissioner Burton and Commissioner Carter are here.
 12 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair.
 13 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes, Commissioner Burton.
 14 COMMISSIONER BURTON: I called for a point of order
 15 and I also want to state that...
 16 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: What is your point of order?
 17 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Point of order was what
 18 Commissioner Bernard said, was totally inappropriate to a
 19 Detroit resident who came and spoke during public
 20 comments. Public comments is for our residents to come
 21 and share their concerns to the board. I don't think we
 22 should be referring to somebody that, you know, saying
 23 that a person needs medication. That was definitely
 24 inappropriate from Commissioner Bernard to a resident
 25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Next public commenter.

1 DR. JACKSON: Mr. Chairman, you need to rule on the
 2 point of order.
 3 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: It can be a point of a
 4 contention, but I don't know how it delays our meeting.
 5 Commissioners have the opportunity to respond to public
 6 comment. Again, we hope that everyone would do so with
 7 the matter of decorum and respect.
 8 MS. UNDERWOOD: Mr. Chair, we're going to be... I'm
 9 sorry.
 10 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Go right ahead.
 11 MS. UNDERWOOD: Mr. Chair, we're going into Zoom. We
 12 have Absentee Ballot Voter Fraud, former Commissioner
 13 William Davis, and our last speaker will be Scotty
 14 Bowman. Absentee Ballot.
 15 ABSENTEE BALLOT: Okay, the prompt for me to unmute
 16 just came up. So, can you hear me clearly?
 17 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Go right ahead.
 18 ABSENTEE BALLOT: Okay. We have absentee ballot voter
 19 fraud, international absentee ballot voter fraud
 20 happening here in the City of Detroit and the Detroit
 21 City clerk lying and cheating. Lying about giving every
 22 council member in the mayor's office and the law
 23 department, the findings or the allegations of absentee
 24 ballot voter fraud by anonymous citizen report. She
 25 hasn't given any council member to my knowledge the

1 report, nor the law department, nor the mayor's office.
 2 Why is she lying about that? She's on public record,
 3 April the 25th, NFL Draft Day, lying about it on public
 4 record. Zoom video. It's got a timestamp on it and
 5 cheating in elections. Mary Elaine Beckman doesn't have a
 6 ballot over the Department of Elections. She lives in
 7 Germany. She's a citizen. There appears to be no
 8 correspondence between the Department of Election in
 9 Germany. And then they sent a ballot, they only sent out
 10 one per person.
 11 They sent the ballot to 12842 Sussex Street, and we
 12 have some immigrants living over there. Stand up
 13 gentlemen. They've been living there for 5 months. They
 14 don't even know who Mary Elaine Beckman is. And the
 15 Department of Elections is... it's an inside job. All roads
 16 lead to the Department of Elections. Now, Janice Winfrey,
 17 Gina Avery Walker are over the department. They know who
 18 entered the bogus information into the city's database.
 19 But everybody on council seems scared to ask. The mayor's
 20 office, they won't ask. The law department won't ask. And
 21 the OIG says it's out of their jurisdiction because it
 22 deals with bogus matters. Computer data entry falls
 23 squarely within the Office of Inspector General's
 24 jurisdiction. False information, bogus information in the
 25 city's database.

1 MS. UNDERWOOD: Former Commissioner Davis.
 2 FMR. COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Good afternoon. Can I be
 3 heard?
 4 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes, you can. Go right ahead.
 5 FMR. COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Okay. I'd like to start off
 6 by saying I think it is a very bad form that I know most
 7 of you all weren't there then, but in 2019, I was a
 8 police commissioner for District 7. One of my precincts,
 9 District 6 had a young police officer, Sergeant Elaine
 10 Williams was shot 5 times and she died. And recently the
 11 Wayne County Prosecutor's Office, you know, did a plea
 12 deal with her domestic partner, and is getting years'
 13 probation. I mean, that should, you know, be something
 14 that should call out to all of you all. You know, that's
 15 so wrong on so many levels. You know, how could a
 16 domestic partner kill a Detroit police officer, a
 17 sergeant, a young, bright young lady, had a bright future
 18 with kids and stuff and get probation, 3 years'
 19 probation.
 20 You know, apparently we need to make sure that there
 21 are better investigations going on even though this case
 22 happened in Garden City. You know, so I think you all
 23 should mention something like that and bring it up. Also,
 24 I've been getting a number of complaints from reserve
 25 police officers. The fact that the number of reserve

1 police officers have been dropping and they've been
 2 dropping mainly because they've been mistreated and
 3 talked down to by regular police officers. You know, we
 4 need to encourage people who want to be reserve officers,
 5 to be reserve officers. We need to encourage our regular
 6 officers to support them, don't talk down to them and
 7 encourage them, because you know, it's better for the
 8 City of Detroit to have some reserved police officers
 9 because we really need to have more officers on the
 10 street than what we do, especially in the neighborhoods.
 11 I think, you know, that's something you all should be
 12 bringing up and pushing for the reserve officers to be
 13 treated better. Thank you.
 14 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you.
 15 MR. BOWMAN: Hi. Okay. Speak yet?
 16 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yep, go right ahead.
 17 MR. BOWMAN: Yeah, this is Scotty Bowman, founder of
 18 DRACO, Detroit Residents Advancing Civilian Oversight.
 19 First of all, I'd like to echo, so you can insert a
 20 repetition, copy, paste it of Eric Blount's, Minister
 21 Eric Blount's comments, he's spot on. Secondly, and sort
 22 of on that note, we need to really get the backlog of
 23 cases caught up. I know that it's difficult. I think you
 24 need to hire as many investigators as you can to make
 25 sure it can happen, and make sure they're all on task,

1 because I know I have a case that's at least a year old,
2 and I haven't seen it resolved. I assume I'm not the only
3 ones who are basically at least a year behind. And then
4 also in a more general sense of policy, most recently you
5 may have heard about an actress who incidentally played a
6 person in the legal community on television. But the
7 actress's family dog was slaughtered on her front lawn,
8 and the killer faces no consequences, just on a claim, a
9 fairly improbable claim of self-defense.

10 I think we need to have a policy that's clear, and I
11 fully believe that a person's right to self-defense is a
12 natural and legal right, up to and including deadly
13 force. But when deadly force is used, there needs to be
14 some verification to make sure that's what really
15 happened, or else everyone can get away with murder just
16 by claiming self-defense every time they kill somebody.
17 And we certainly don't want that. So I think we really
18 have to have strong policies about vetting all self-
19 defense claims, especially when a person uses deadly
20 force. And have a nice afternoon.

21 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Alright, so those
22 are all of our public commenters. We thank everyone for
23 your comments. Again, noting that we did pass a motion to
24 postpone the two presentations to the board. We'll now
25 move to the report from our Acting Board Secretary and

1 incoming communications.

2 MR. BROWN: Mr. Chair, there are currently two
3 incoming communications. They're in your binders. And
4 from there, if you want me to, I'll go to the
5 announcements.

6 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Go right ahead.

7 MR. BROWN: The next BOPC meeting is Thursday, May
8 23rd, at 3:00 PM, here at the Detroit Public Safety
9 Headquarters. The next BOPC community meeting will be
10 Thursday, June 13th at 6:30 PM, with the 7th Precinct
11 hosting, and the location is forthcoming. The monthly
12 scheduled meeting for May community meeting for May, 2024
13 will be the Citizen Complaint meeting Tuesday, May 21st,
14 2024. And Mr. Chair, just let me make a note, next week's
15 Personnel and Training will be meeting on Wednesday, and
16 I believe that date is May 23rd, I believe.

17 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: 22nd.

18 MR. BROWN: 22nd. Okay.

19 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Okay. Thank you so very much.
20 Now we'll move on to unfinished business. Well, we have
21 two committee reports. First we'll begin with our
22 Citizens Complaint Committee Report by the Chair of that
23 committee. Commissioner Banks.

24 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. On the
25 behalf of the Board of Police Commissioners Citizens

1 Complaint Committee, please see the key updates from the
2 committee meeting held on April 23rd, 2024. Board
3 members, Committee Chairperson Cedric Banks, Commissioner
4 Smith, Commissioner Woods. Attendees: Chief Investigator
5 Jerome Warfield, Police Community Relations Coordinator,
6 Teresa Blossom, Acting Board Secretary Robert Brown,
7 Administrative Assistant, Candace Hayes, and Lieutenant
8 Starr Gonzalez. Guest Speakers: Public Commenter, Mr.
9 Edwards. Report from Chief Investigator, Jerome Warfield
10 provided the update, current staffing at OCI includes, 2
11 supervising investigators, 1 acting supervisor,
12 investigator four, senior investigator, and 13
13 investigators. 2 new investigators have recently been
14 onboarded, and 6 investigator positions remain unfilled.
15 Current case ambulatory is as follows: total, 1,868
16 cases, 1,479 are our backlog, past 90 days and 389
17 current cases. Year to date, complaints and allegations.
18 OCI has processed 524 citizens' complaints and has
19 recorded 1,193 allegations of misconduct. Report on 223
20 citizens' complaint trends, police. Community Relations
21 Coordinator, Teresa Blossom provided the following
22 update. A record number of 1,742 complaints were filed
23 with OCI in 2023. Due to a record number of complaints,
24 it is likely that there were a record number of
25 allegations. The George Floyd incident in 2020, and the

1 Tyree Nichols incident in 2023 is likely a contributing
2 factor to the increase of complaints. Additionally, the
3 public raised awareness on police brutality, and how to
4 file a complaint is likely to have contributed to the
5 increase of complaints. WingSwept is going to be pivotal
6 in taking a critical look at data to get a better
7 understanding of citizen's complaints. The next Citizen
8 Complaint Committee meeting will be Tuesday, May 21, 2024
9 5:00 PM. Sincerely, Cedric Banks Chairperson Committee.

10 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Are there any
11 questions for that committee report? Hearing none, we
12 will move on to our next committee report, which is the
13 Policy Committee Report which is offered by the chair of
14 that committee. Commissioner Bernard.

15 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The
16 Policy Committee meeting was held on May 14th. I was
17 present. Commissioner Woods was present. And Commissioner
18 Burton. The other persons who actively participated in
19 the committee that were also present were the Acting
20 Secretary, Robert Brown. Jasmine Taylor, Administrative
21 Assistant, Candace Hayes, Administrative Assistant, Ms.
22 Teresa Blossom, Police Community Relations Coordinator,
23 Deputy Chief Mark Bliss, who's present here today of the
24 Professional Development Bureau. Mr. Stephen Lamoreaux.
25 I'm sorry, I said it incorrectly. It's French, but he is

1 the Director of Crime Data Analytics. Captain Heather
2 Cameron, Professor Rebecca Robichaud of Wayne State
3 University Law School. Molly Moening, Wayne State Law
4 School Graduate Fellow. And Mr. Ramis Wadood, the staff
5 attorney at the ACLU, together with Julia Kahn, student
6 attorney at the U of M School, and Mr. LaDon Davis, a
7 council member.

8 There were two things that are actually action
9 items, Mr. Chairman that occurred. Stephen Lamoreaux,
10 regarding the facial recognition policy, which has been
11 very important to the community and to everyone involved.
12 Stephen Lamoreaux had provided a background on how the
13 revisions... we made revisions to that policy,
14 collaborating with ACLU, and stated that the revision
15 provided a broader context of rules for what happens
16 after the facial recognition is completed. Chairperson
17 Bernard, open discussion for questions to Mr. Lamoreaux
18 and Mr. Ramis Wadood, also staff attorney at the ACLU.
19 They shared that there was an active collaboration in the
20 development of the revision of the policy with DPD and
21 with the law school Mr. Robert Williams, who was falsely
22 identified by facial recognition, was also involved. And
23 if the policy is adopted, it would be the best in the
24 nation when it comes to regulating the use of facial
25 recognition by police departments.

1 Commissioner Bernard and Commissioner Woods voted
2 and agreed to move the policy out of committee to the
3 full board for review and approval. It will be in the, in
4 the next meeting packet for you, for the board to approve
5 the policy. The second policy that was discussed was the
6 eyewitness identification and lineups. As we know,
7 eyewitness identifications and lineups are the principal
8 reason that cases are reversed and that people have been
9 wrongfully arrested and incarcerated. So it's very
10 important that we refine this policy. Captain Heather
11 Cameron provided an introduction of the policy. Ramis
12 Wadood, staff attorney at ACLU shared again that ACLU did
13 collaborate on the revision of the policy, and that the
14 document does represent industry best practices in terms
15 of double blind sequential non-suggestive practices.
16 Julia agreed with Mr. Wadood that the UOM has worked
17 closely with the ACLU on the policy and Mr. Williams in
18 the revision process of the policy, and it would be the
19 best practice.

20 That's the second policy that you'll have next week.
21 Third, the specification report on a surveillance van.
22 Deputy Chief Mark Bliss provided a brief introduction to
23 the specification report stating that it outlines the
24 usage of the surveillance van and what DPD is doing with
25 it. DC Bliss stated that DPD has always had surveillance

1 vans, and how it is used has not changed, but they are
2 updating the equipment in the van. There is language in
3 the specification report that comes directly from the
4 ordinance, and this language cannot be changed as DPD is
5 the constitutional police department. The specification
6 report does allow data sharing retention and, and also a
7 dissemination policy by and bias based policing, of
8 course, is referenced, which of course, is illegal and
9 inappropriate under the policy record, retention,
10 schedule policy, et cetera. I opened the discussion with
11 Deputy Chief Bliss regarding the report. The committee
12 raised the following questions and requests. How is the
13 surveillance van beneficial to the community? Are there
14 specific cases where the surveillance van has been
15 effective? Two, provide a number, provide a number of how
16 many times the van is used and outcomes of those usages,
17 to show if the tool is effective or a good use of
18 resources. Thirdly, are there any problems that have come
19 out of the usage of the van? And finally, differentiate
20 between the new and old technology being updated and what
21 its capability is. A major concern was that the van has
22 equipment to not just view and see and record that, but
23 also to listen. It has an audio component that is
24 different. And that, to me anyway, personally raises
25 constitutional questions. DC Bliss reported to bring back

1 more information to the committee on this matter, and the
2 actual, if you will, specifications of the equipment that
3 will be added.

4 Finally, there was a Wayne law tour. The person and
5 Professor Robichaud's class came with me, and also
6 Jasmine Taylor. And we toured the real time crime center
7 for about two and a half hours. It was an amazing tour. I
8 want to do a special thank you on the record to Ms.
9 Sheila Young and Ms. Lamonica Williams for their time and
10 dialogue and on understanding the uses of some of the
11 technology, and talking through how more, how more data
12 would be helpful for the community to understand the
13 effectiveness of some of the technologies. I'm going to
14 send them official letters, thanking them and copy the
15 Chief on those letters. Our next meeting is scheduled for
16 June 11th at 5:00 PM

17 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair.

18 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Commissioner
19 Burton.

20 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Thank you, Chair. You know, as
21 the past chairperson of the policy subcommittee, you
22 know, I just want to say that the policy subcommittee did
23 meet on Tuesday. There were some discussions at the
24 table, but I called for adjournment at 5:37, and so,
25 therefore, the board lost quorum. In addition to that,

1 Commissioner Bernard called for a 5 minute recess because
 2 Robert Brown, the Acting Secretary, asked her to call for
 3 a 5 minute recess. So the question for the
 4 parliamentarian, if the adjournment is called, is it
 5 considered a non-debatable?
 6 DR. JACKSON: Was the motion stated and then adopted?
 7 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: No.
 8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: No, it was not.
 9 COMMISSIONER BURTON: I called for the adjournment. I
 10 left, therefore there was no quorum, and then
 11 Commissioner Bernard called for a 5 minute recess right
 12 after I called for the adjournment, and walked away from
 13 my chair. So then at 5:42 still no one came back on or
 14 whatever, then at 5:46 they go in, they go back into the
 15 meeting, which is way past the 5 minute mark and then
 16 continue this meeting. But the adjournment was called,
 17 therefore, there was no quorum. And to my understanding
 18 it was non-debatable.
 19 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Call for adjournment does not
 20 end the quorum. And your call for adjournment has to be
 21 seconded and then voted on by.
 22 COMMISSIONER BURTON: There was no there was no
 23 quorum at that point. So therefore, how can the meeting
 24 continue?
 25 COMMISSIONER WOODS: Through the Chair?

1 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Woods?
 2 COMMISSIONER WOODS: Yes, you know, I think it was a
 3 dereliction of duty for Mr. Burton to continue to, or
 4 Commissioner Burton, to continue to walk out of meetings,
 5 trying to hijack meetings, disregarding...
 6 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Point of order...
 7 COMMISSIONER WOODS: Business of...
 8 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Point of order...
 9 COMMISSIONER WOODS: the people of the City of
 10 Detroit. I think it is disgraceful. You know, that we
 11 can...
 12 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Point of order.
 13 COMMISSIONER WOODS: Excuse me.
 14 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: You've not been recognized,
 15 Commissioner Burton.
 16 COMMISSIONER WOODS: I think it's disgraceful that he
 17 would continue to treat the citizens of the City of
 18 Detroit in this matter. You know, the fact of the matter
 19 is that we had some of the most serious policies that
 20 affects the citizens of the City of Detroit and was
 21 revolutionary to bring people into this particular
 22 meeting, people who had sued the City of Detroit, people
 23 who had sued the City of Detroit, at the table, helping
 24 to create policy to prevent other lawsuits, to prevent
 25 other harm from happening to the citizens of the City of

1 Detroit. And to be able to derelict your duty, and to
 2 walk out on the people of the City of Detroit is
 3 disgraceful
 4 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Point of order.
 5 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: So Chair Bernard, my question
 6 is, who was in attendance at that committee meeting?
 7 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Mr. Burton walked out. I
 8 simply said that we would take a recess because I knew
 9 that Commissioner Woods was coming, and he did come. We
 10 reestablished a quorum. There were like 10 people there.
 11 We all just waited for that little time until he parked
 12 downstairs and he came up and we finished the meeting.
 13 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Okay. So again, it doesn't...
 14 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: And Mr. Burton was in the
 15 hallway the whole time.
 16 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: So, it doesn't appear to be an
 17 issue of...
 18 DR. JACKSON: A committee of 3 people, the quorum
 19 would be 2.
 20 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes, correct.
 21 DR. JACKSON: So if there were 2 people present, then
 22 there was a corner.
 23 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Correct.
 24 DR. JACKSON: And therefore, the meeting absolutely
 25 could continue.

1 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Thank you.
 2 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair. There were 2
 3 people in the meeting. There was Commissioner Bernard and
 4 myself. When I left at 5:37, I called for adjournment as
 5 I left, and I said it twice at the scene. Therefore,
 6 there was no quorum. I was there to make the quorum. I
 7 was there for the meeting. I stayed for 37 minutes prior
 8 to being dragged into...
 9 DR. JACKSON: Mr. Chair.
 10 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Another meeting in my District.
 11 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Dr. Jackson.
 12 DR. JACKSON: If I, good. There are several motions
 13 that are in order, even in the absence of a quorum. One
 14 of the motions that would be in order is a motion to
 15 recess. And that motion would be made if you feel that
 16 you have a reasonable expectation of acquiring a quorum
 17 in a reasonable amount of time. So based on what I'm
 18 hearing, Mr. Chairman, the motion to recess, which is in
 19 order, we do it all the time when we don't have a quorum
 20 here, because we have expectation that a quorum will
 21 occur. So the motion to recess is one of the motions that
 22 can be made in order, in the absence of a quorum, based
 23 on what I'm hearing, a quorum was soon reestablished, and
 24 therefore the meeting was completely valid.
 25 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair. I'm calling

1 for the parliamentarian to review the minutes from the
 2 policy subcommittee and also review the online video if
 3 it's posted at this time.
 4 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Well, I mean that it was well
 5 within your right, you know, again, but I would just ask
 6 you to really again, inquire like to what end. I mean, I
 7 don't really know what your...
 8 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Because it violates, you know,
 9 that continuing meeting when there is no quorum and...
 10 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: You keep stating...
 11 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Yeah. It was not, it was not a
 12 quorum.
 13 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: What's a quorum for your
 14 committee, Commissioner
 15 Burton?
 16 COMMISSIONER BURTON: So, therefore...
 17 Commissioner Burton, what is a quorum for your
 18 committee?
 19 COMMISSIONER BURTON: 2, it would be 2. I left, and
 20 it was, and I called for adjournment as I left...
 21 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Burton...
 22 COMMISSIONER BURTON: No meeting.
 23 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Burton, you've
 24 just been made aware that when you left, Commissioner
 25 Woods arrived, which created...

1 COMMISSIONER WOODS: Commissioner Woods didn't arrive
 2 until around 5:46. I called for the adjournment at 5:37.
 3 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: So, again, we will follow
 4 your request and ask that Dr. Jackson review the minutes
 5 of the meeting. But again, I don't know to what end you
 6 are attempting to accomplish. And again,
 7 COMMISSIONER BURTON: So therefore -
 8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: You have not been recognized.
 9 It's hard for you to know who has arrived when you've
 10 admitted that you left. Now, if you were still there,
 11 still there when the person arrived. And again, that does
 12 then speak to negligence on your part to fulfill your
 13 responsibility to serve in that committee, if you indeed
 14 were there. Okay? But if not, it's hard for you to then
 15 account for who was there, if you are admitting that you
 16 were not. But we will have... COMMISSIONER BURTON: There...
 17 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: You have not been recognized.
 18 COMMISSIONER BURTON: There were people on the zoom.
 19 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Point of order. You have not
 20 been recognized.
 21 COMMISSIONER BURTON: That spoke that.
 22 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Point of order. You have not
 23 been recognized. So we will add your requests and have
 24 those minutes reviewed. But as we have a very lengthy
 25 agenda, I ask that we will move forward with that matter.

1 Are there any further questions for the Policy Committee?
 2 COMMISSIONER WOODS: I would like to end on the note
 3 that I want to applaud Commissioner Bernard, and I want
 4 to applaud the University of Michigan Civil Rights Law,
 5 the Law School, the Civil Rights Department, the ACLU, as
 6 well as the Chief of Police for their great leadership,
 7 and the person who was, have been victimized by the
 8 facial recognition dilemma for coming to the table and
 9 creating a policy that is in the best interest for the
 10 people of the City of Detroit.
 11 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Are there any
 12 further questions or comments? Commissioner Banks.
 13 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Through the Chair. Yes. Mr.
 14 Chairman, we lost At Large Roy Gamble, right? He
 15 resigned.
 16 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Correct.
 17 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Now, do we know when any other
 18 commissioners may be replacing him?
 19 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: No.
 20 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Okay. You know, we have some
 21 good commissioners that follow this board. William Davis,
 22 Minister Eric...
 23 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Alright. I'm going to ask
 24 whatever that comment is that you hold it, because again,
 25 we're speaking particularly on the...

1 COMMISSIONER BANKS: But this new business, though,
 2 right?
 3 CHAIRPERSON: No, no, no. I asked for any further
 4 questions about the Policy Committee Report.
 5 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair.
 6 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Burton.
 7 COMMISSIONER BURTON: You know, it was 2019, or I
 8 raised at this, at this table, what happens when facial
 9 recognition misidentified a person of color that doesn't
 10 have the resources for good legal defense and how it
 11 criminalizes those that wake up every day in poverty. In
 12 addition to that, I am the commissioner that called in
 13 the ACLU, the University of Michigan, countless times
 14 here in commissioner meetings. Countless times, I've
 15 called for, you know, having Wayne State University to
 16 weigh in on policy issues, the ACLU, but also the Arab
 17 Civil Rights Lead. Also, I call for that in the Policy
 18 Committee, but we also call for the National Action
 19 Network. I also call for the poverty post tank with the
 20 Bankole Thompson and also community members. I'm the
 21 first Chairperson of the Policy Committee to invite the
 22 public to weigh in on our policies including John Conyers
 23 II, who came in here and wrote an intensive 8/9 page
 24 report on one of our key policies at the time.
 25 I also brought in a company that's out of Chicago

1 and that's also in California, came here and talked about
 2 body-worn cameras and things of that nature, addressing a
 3 number of our policies. I also, you know, as a
 4 commissioner, I talked about techno racism not being able
 5 to identify one black person to another. We still have
 6 serious issues here in America's blackest, poor city like
 7 Detroit, Michigan, when you have 3 African Americans that
 8 we know of that's been misidentified, misidentified by
 9 techno racism, better known as facial recognition. You
 10 have Robert Williams, Michael Oliver, who slept on a
 11 Wayne County jail floor, submitted to the floor and ate
 12 for breakfast, lunch, and dinner bologna sandwiches for a
 13 crime he didn't commit. And then you have Porsche
 14 Woodworth right now in the United States, you have 7
 15 people right now that have been misidentified that we
 16 know of by facial recognition. That's 42.8%
 17 misidentification right here in the City of Detroit out
 18 of the 7 , do to math. If one innocent person is
 19 misidentified, that's one too many.
 20 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Are there any
 21 further questions? Commissioner Hernandez?
 22 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Thank you so much. Through
 23 the Chair. I would just, in reference to the actual
 24 policy memorandum that was provided to us, I'd like to
 25 end this portion of it on a factual note. And actually

1 thank the colleagues who don't walk away when there are
 2 pressing items that need to be addressed. So, I think
 3 I'll echo my colleagues on the committee who are thanking
 4 those who stepped up to the table and actually were there
 5 in present so that the meeting could continue. Anything
 6 else is just noise. Thank you.
 7 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you.
 8 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair. Real quick,
 9 real brief.
 10 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: You have not been recognized.
 11 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Five seconds, Mr. Chairman.
 12 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: You have not been recognized.
 13 COMMISSIONER BURTON: MR. Chairman, five seconds,
 14 real quick.
 15 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Mr. Burton, you're out of
 16 order. You have not been recognized and now we'll move on
 17 to new business.
 18 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair...
 19 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Is there any new business?
 20 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Mr. Chairman, I want to just
 21 say...
 22 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: You are out of order,
 23 Commissioner Burton, you have not been recognized. So,
 24 pursuant to...
 25 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Mr. Chairman, I'm going to say

1 real quick...
 2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: You are out of order...
 3 COMMISSIONER BURTON: One of the best...
 4 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: You are out of order
 5 Commissioner Burton.
 6 COMMISSIONER BURTON: I have one of the best
 7 attendance on this entire board.
 8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: You're out of order,
 9 Commissioner.
 10 COMMISSIONER BURTON: And for those that cannot
 11 attend...
 12 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Burton, you're
 13 out of order.
 14 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Next...
 15 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Burton...
 16 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Submit your...
 17 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: You're out of order.
 18 COMMISSIONER BURTON: But I have...
 19 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: You're out of order.
 20 COMMISSIONER BURTON: The best attendance race on
 21 this...
 22 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Burton, you're
 23 out of order. Thank you.
 24 COMMISSIONER WOODS: Mr. Chairman, if I could be
 25 recognized.

1 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: You're not recognized. We're
 2 going to move the new business at this time. Closed
 3 Session pursuant to Section (8a) of the Open Meetings Act
 4 MCL 15.268 (a), the department's request for the board to
 5 consider administrative leave without payable with
 6 medical benefits for Police Officer Caleb Williams, Badge
 7 number 1854, assigned to the 5th Precinct. The Chair
 8 entertains a motion.
 9 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: So move.
 10 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Is there a second?
 11 COMMISSIONER [unclear01:11:15].
 12 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: It's been properly moved and
 13 seconded. Is there any discussion? Hearing no discussion,
 14 all those in favor please signify by saying, Aye.
 15 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
 16 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All those opposed? No. The
 17 Ayes have it. We'll take a 3 minute recess to set the
 18 room up. Public, please be aware, we have 4 closed
 19 sessions, so it might be a few back and forth, but I do
 20 apologize for any inconvenience. Thank you.
 21
 22 (WHEREUPON HE BOARD ENTERED INTO CLOSED SESSION)
 23
 24 And so we'll now call this meeting back to session
 25 as we're in open session. And again, this is there... oh, I

1 guess I need to do a roll call.
 2 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Thank you.
 3 MR. BROWN: Chairperson Pressley - Here.
 4 MR. BROWN: Vice Chairperson Smith - Here.
 5 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Bernard - Present.
 6 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Banks - Present
 7 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Bell - Present.
 8 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Burton - Present.
 9 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Carter - Present
 10 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Hernandez - Present.
 11 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Woods - Present.
 12 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes.
 13 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: I'll make a motion to accept
 14 the department's request for the board to consider
 15 administrative leave without pay, but with medical
 16 benefits for police officer Caleb Williams. Badge 1854,
 17 assigned to the 5th Precinct.
 18 COMMISSIONER BELL: Second.
 19 MR. BROWN: Chairperson Pressley - No.
 20 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Smith - No.
 21 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Bernard - No.
 22 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Banks - No.
 23 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Bell - Yes.
 24 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Burton - Abstain.
 25 MR. BROWN: Carter - No.

1 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Hernandez - Yes.
 2 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Woods - No.
 3 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All right. With 2 yes votes,
 4 and 6 no votes and 1 abstention, which counts as a no
 5 vote, that motion fails. Alright, the Chair now
 6 entertains a motion to enter into closed Session pursuant
 7 to Section (8a) of the Open Meetings Act. MCL 15.268 (a).
 8 The department's request for the board to consider
 9 administrative leave without pay, but with medical
 10 benefits for Police Officer Glenn Bines, Badge 2071,
 11 assigned to the 5th Precinct.
 12 COMMISSIONER WOODS: So moved.
 13 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Second.
 14 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: It's been properly moved and
 15 second. Is there any discussion, hearing, or discussion?
 16 All those in favor please signify by saying, Aye.
 17 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
 18 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All those opposed? No. The
 19 Ayes have it. That motion passes. We will now have a 3
 20 minute recess to set the room up for a closed session.
 21
 22 (WHEREUPON HE BOARD ENTERED INTO CLOSED SESSION)
 23
 24 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Alright. With that the Chair
 25 now calls the meeting back into open session. We'll begin

1 with the introduction of commissioners.
 2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner QuanTez Pressley
 3 - here.
 4 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Vice Chair Tamara Liberty
 5 Smith - Here.
 6 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Linda Bernard -
 7 Present.
 8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Cedric Banks -
 9 Present.
 10 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Lisa Carter -
 11 Here.
 12 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Jesus Hernandez -
 13 Present; and CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Darrell
 14 Woods - Present
 15 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: With that, we do indeed have a
 16 quorum. Is there a motion?
 17 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Through the Chair.
 18 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Hernandez.
 19 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: I'll make a motion to accept
 20 the department's request for the board to consider
 21 administrative leave without pay, but with medical
 22 benefits for police Officer Glenn Bines. Batch 2071
 23 assigned to the 5th Precinct.
 24 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Is there a second?
 25 COMMISSIONER WOODS: Second.

1 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: It's been properly moved and
 2 second. Is there any discussion? Hearing no discussion,
 3 roll call vote.
 4 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Vice Chair Tamara Liberty
 5 Smith - No.
 6 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Linda Bernard -
 7 No.
 8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Cedric Banks -
 9 Yes.
 10 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Lisa Carter -
 11 Yes.
 12 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Jesus Hernandez -
 13 Yes.
 14 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Darryl Woods -
 15 Yes.
 16 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: And Commissioner QuanTez
 17 Pressley - Yes.
 18 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: With 5 yes votes and 2 no
 19 votes. Is that two-thirds?
 20 DR. JACKSON: Yes.
 21 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: That motion passes. The Chair
 22 entertains a motion to enter into d Session, pursuant to
 23 Section 8(f) of the Open Meetings Act. MCL 15.268 (f)
 24 candidate Koren Crowley for the board to consider
 25 disqualifying applicant appeal from DPD hiring process.


1 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: So moved.
 2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Is there a second?
 3 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Second.
 4 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: It's been properly moved and
 5 second. Is there any discussion? Hearing no discussion,
 6 all those in favor please signify by saying, Aye.
 7 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
 8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All those opposed? No. All
 9 right. The Ayes have it. That motion passes. We will
 10 enter into a 3 minute recess to set the room up for a
 11 closed session.
 12
 13 (WHEREUPON HE BOARD ENTERED INTO CLOSED SESSION)
 14
 15 Alright, the Chair now calls this meeting back to
 16 order. We'll begin with the introduction of commissioners
 17 by Mr. Brown.
 18 MR. BROWN: Chairperson, Pressley - Here.
 19 MR. BROWN: Vice Chairperson Smith - Here.
 20 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Bernard - Present.
 21 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Banks - Present.
 22 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Carter - Present.
 23 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Hernandez Present.
 24 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Woods - Present.
 25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All right. Is there a motion?

1 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Through the Chair.
 2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Carter.
 3 COMMISSIONER CARTER: I would like to follow the
 4 Chief's recommendation to permanently disqualify
 5 candidate Darrice King...
 6 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Koren Crowley.
 7 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Oh my bad. I'm sorry. Koren
 8 Crowley to the board. I mean to disqualify the applicant
 9 from the DPD hiring process.
 10 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Right. There's a motion that
 11 we accept the Chief's recommendation to permanently
 12 disqualify candidate Koren Crowley from the applicant
 13 process. Is there a second?
 14 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Second.
 15 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: It's been properly moved, and
 16 second. Is there any discussion? Hearing no discussion,
 17 we now moved to a roll call vote.
 18 MR. BROWN: Chairperson Pressley - And let me not
 19 confuse myself. This motion is to accept the Chief's
 20 recommendation - No.
 21 MR. BROWN: Vice Chairperson Smith - Yes.
 22 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Carter - Yes.
 23 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Bernard - No.
 24 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Banks - No.
 25 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Hernandez - Yes.

1 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Woods - No.
 2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Okay. With 3 yes votes and 4
 3 no votes, that motion fails. Alright, the Chair now
 4 entertains a motion to enter into Closed Session pursuant
 5 to Section 8 (f) of the Open Meetings Act. MCL 15.2 68
 6 (f) candidate Darrice Cain for the board to consider
 7 disqualifying applicant appeal from DPD hiring process.
 8 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: So moved.
 9 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Second.
 10 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: It's been properly moved and
 11 second. Any discussion? Hearing no discussion, all those
 12 in favor please signify by saying, Aye.
 13 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
 14 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All those opposed? No.
 15 Alright, the Ayes have it. That motion passes. We'll take
 16 3 minutes.
 17
 18 (WHEREUPON HE BOARD ENTERED INTO CLOSED SESSION)
 19
 20 Alright. The Chair now calls this meeting back to
 21 order. We will now have an Introduction to commissioners
 22 by Mr. Brown.
 23 MR. BROWN: Chairperson Pressley - Here.
 24 MR. BROWN: Vice Chairperson Smith - Here.
 25 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Bernard - Present.

1 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Bank - Present.
 2 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Carter -
 3 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Hernandez - Present.
 4 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Woods - Present.
 5 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: With that we have a quorum. Is
 6 there a motion?
 7 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: There's a motion to allow her
 8 to proceed as an applicant for the police department.
 9 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Alright. So there has been a
 10 motion to reject the Chief's recommendation to
 11 permanently disqualify candidate Darrice Cain from
 12 applying in the DPD hiring process. Is there a second?
 13 COMMISSIONER BANKS: Second.
 14 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: It's been properly moved and
 15 second. Is there any discussion, hearing or discussion,
 16 roll call vote, Mr. Brown.
 17 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Through the Chair?
 18 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes.
 19 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Can we just clarify?
 20 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yep. So again, the motion is
 21 to reject the Chief's recommendation to disqualify
 22 candidate Darrice Cain from the DPD hiring processes.
 23 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Thank you.
 24 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: So a yes, would be to reject
 25 the Chief's recommendation and a no, would be to accept

1 it.
 2 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I made the motion to accept
 3 it, to allow her to...
 4 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yeah, we got it. So please
 5 don't confuse us. Alright, go right ahead. Mr. Brown.
 6 MR. BROWN: Chairperson. Pressley - No.
 7 MR. BROWN: Vice Chairperson Smith - No.
 8 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Bernard - Yes.
 9 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Banks - Mr. Chair, I'm going
 10 to change. I'm going to go, no.
 11 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Carter - No.
 12 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Hernandez - No.
 13 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Woods - No.
 14 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Alright. With 1 yes vote and 6
 15 no votes, that motion fails.
 16 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Through the Chair.
 17 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes. Do we still have to adopt
 18 Chief White's recommendation, just for clarity?
 19 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Good question, for our
 20 parliamentarian.
 21 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Because if not, it would be
 22 considered just no action. And I don't know that that
 23 leads to anything.
 24 DR. JACKSON: The motion has to do with the candidate
 25 appealing, being disqualified. And what you just did was

1
 2
 3
 4
 5 STATE OF MICHIGAN)
 6)
 7 COUNTY OF WAYNE)
 8
 9 RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE AND NOTARIZATION
 10
 11 I, Donald Handyside, Court Recorder, do hereby
 12 certify that on May 16, 2024 at 3:00 P.M., I did
 13 record the Detroit BOPC meeting, the same being
 14 later reduced to typewriting and that the foregoing
 15 is a true and accurate transcription of said
 16 electronic recording taken at such time and place.
 17 I further certify that I am not related to
 18 or employed by any party of this cause or their
 19 respective counsel.
 20
 21 
 22 DONALD HANDYSIDE (CER 1464)
 23 Notary Public
 24 My Commission Expires: 5/6/2027
 25

1 to say we are not going to overturn the decision that has
 2 been made.
 3 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: That's exactly right. Alright,
 4 so that's sufficient. The Chair entertains a motion for
 5 adjournment.
 6 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: So move there.
 7 COMMISSIONER SMITH: Second.
 8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Any discussion? Hearing no
 9 discussion, all those in favor, please signify by saying,
 10 Aye.
 11 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
 12 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All those opposed? No. The
 13 Ayes have it. That motion passes. Thank you for your
 14 patience in today's meeting.
 15
 16
 17
 18
 19 (Meeting Adjourned at 6:09 P.M.)
 20
 21
 22
 23
 24
 25

\$

\$200 21:19

(

(8a) 53:3 55:7
(a) 53:4 55:7
(f) 57:23 60:5,6

1

1 36:11 55:4 62:14
1,193 36:19
1,479 36:16
1,742 36:22
1,832 9:6
1,868 36:15
1,941 9:6
1- 9:25 11:2
10 23:22 44:10
10000 12:19
105 8:20
10th 6:4 8:11 10:3
11th 15:1 41:16
12% 8:9
124 8:20
12842 31:11
12:10 9:7
12:35 14:17
12th 8:11 9:17 12:7,18 13:19
13 12:23 36:12
130 9:3
13th 11:4 13:16 35:10
14 9:11 10:2
14-year-old 10:7

14th 14:11 37:16
15 8:6,13
15.2 60:5
15.268 53:4 55:7 57:23
15th 14:16
16 4:2
16th 3:9,16 4:17
17-year-old 10:2,10
17th 15:9
1800 14:17
1854 53:7 54:16
18th 15:14
190 9:2
19000 11:5
1996 5:23
1:00 15:14
1:12 13:19
1:53 12:18
1st 6:14

2

2 2:23 25:2 27:7 36:10,13 44:19,
21 45:2 46:19 55:3 57:18
2,559 9:5
2,595 9:4
2000 6:4
20000 9:14
2005 6:5
2008 6:5
2011 14:21
2014 6:18
2015 6:8
2016 6:9
2018 6:12

2019 6:13 32:7 49:7
2020 11:9 36:25
2022 6:14 13:22
2023 8:24,25 9:4,5 11:13 12:1
36:23 37:1
2024 3:9,16 4:2,17,20 9:1,6
35:12,14 36:2 37:8
2071 55:10 56:22
20th 6:5
21 37:8
21st 35:13
22 8:19
22% 8:7
223 36:19
22nd 35:17,18
23rd 35:8,16 36:2
25 8:18
25th 31:3
26 6:25
27% 8:7
27th 6:3
29% 8:8
294 8:23

3

3 8:12 32:18 44:18 50:7 53:17
55:19 58:10 60:2,16
30th 5:23 6:12
34 8:21
344 8:23
35 8:11
36 8:21 14:12
37 45:7
389 36:16
3:00 2:1 35:8

4

4 2:25 53:18 60:2
42.8% 50:16

5

5 13:18 21:21 31:13 32:10 42:1,3,
 11,15 57:18
5,281 9:1
5,476 9:1
5,922 8:24
500 10:4,15
52% 8:9
524 36:18
53 8:22
54 13:25
56 14:25
5:00 15:9,15 37:9 41:16
5:37 41:24 45:4 47:2
5:42 42:13
5:46 42:14 47:2
5th 13:11,12 53:7 54:17 55:11
 56:23

6

6 8:14 14:15 24:14 32:9 36:14
 55:4 62:14
6,249 8:25
61 8:22
68 60:5
6:09 63:19
6:30 35:10

7

7 8:16 9:2 21:9 32:8 50:14,18

75 10:24

7th 10:18,19 24:14 25:23 35:10

8

8 8:13 10:9 15:5 60:5

8(f) 57:23

8/9 49:23

80 8:17 20:23

800-SPEAKUP 10:1 11:3

8200 13:20

8:31 11:4

8th 5:25 6:15 14:4

9

90 36:16

92 23:7 24:12

9300 9:8

98 8:16

9:00 15:9

9:18 10:3

9th 4:20 9:7

A

absence 3:4 45:13,22

absentee 30:12,14,15,18,19,23

absolutely 44:24

Abstain 54:24

abstention 55:4

Academy 5:24

accept 54:13 56:19 59:11,19
 61:25 62:2

acceptable 17:15 22:16

accident 11:4,7,18,21 12:14
 14:16,19 15:7

accomplish 47:6

account 47:15

acknowledge 3:10

acknowledged 3:12

ACLU 38:5,14,18 39:12,17 48:5
 49:13,16

acquiring 45:16

Act 53:3 55:7 57:23 60:5

acting 2:18 4:24 34:25 36:6,11
 37:19 42:2

action 38:8 49:18 62:22

active 38:19

actively 37:18

activities 21:25

activity 17:18

actress 34:5

actress's 34:7

acts 20:20

actual 41:2 50:23

actuals 3:21 4:9

add 47:23

added 41:3

addition 41:25 49:12

additional 9:21,24 11:1,22

Additionally 37:2

addressed 51:2

addressing 50:2

Adjourned 63:19

adjournment 41:24 42:4,9,12,16,
 19,20 45:4 46:20 47:2 63:5

Administration 6:14

administrative 36:7 37:20,21
 53:5 54:15 55:9 56:21

admitted 47:10

admitting 47:15

adopt 7:17 62:17

adopted 7:25 38:23 42:6
Advancing 33:18
affects 43:20
African 50:7
afternoon 2:1 4:25 8:3 21:7,8
 22:21,22 27:24,25 32:2 34:20
agencies 18:12
agenda 3:9,17 4:2,17,18 27:19
 28:2 47:25
agree 17:8
agreed 39:2,16
agreement 17:7
ahead 27:13 30:10,17 32:4 33:16
 35:6 62:5
aid 12:23
Ainsley 5:5
All-star 6:19
allegations 30:23 36:17,19,25
alleged 19:7 20:8
allegedly 18:10
allowed 16:5,14 17:1,2 18:23
Alright 3:7 26:14 34:21 48:23
 55:5,24 58:15 60:3,15,20 61:9
 62:5,14 63:3
amazing 41:7
ambulatory 36:15
amen 2:16,17
amend 3:17
amendment 4:17
amendments 3:22
America's 50:6
Americans 50:7
amount 45:17
Analytics 38:1
and... 46:9
Ann 17:3

announcements 35:5
annual 15:13,16
anonymous 30:24
apologize 53:20
app 21:18
apparently 32:20
appeal 57:25 60:7
appealing 62:25
appeared 10:22
appears 31:7
applaud 48:3,4
applicant 57:25 59:8,12 60:7
 61:8
applicants 27:14
applying 61:12
appointed 5:22 6:15
appointment 24:15
Appreciation 6:22
apprehended 11:17
approval 3:8,16 4:16,19,20 39:3
approve 4:1 39:4
approved 4:18,21
April 6:14 31:3 36:2
Arab 49:16
Arbor 17:3
archives 5:19 7:17
area 9:19 10:14 13:2
arguing 13:4,14 14:7
arm 11:21
armed 8:18,20
arraigned 14:12
arrest 24:25
arrested 11:19,22 13:9 14:4
 17:13 25:24 39:9
arrive 47:1

arrived 9:10 10:5 11:8 12:21,23
 13:21 14:20,25 46:25 47:9,11
Ascension 12:24
assholes 25:25 26:3
assigned 6:8,9 53:7 54:17 55:11
 56:23
assignments 6:4
assist 11:6 14:18
Assistant 36:7 37:21
assume 34:2
ate 50:11
attempted 15:4
attempting 9:22 12:9 47:6
attend 24:2
attendance 5:15 44:6 52:7,20
attendants 28:5
Attendees 36:4
attend... 52:11
attention 18:18
attorney 2:22 5:2 38:5,6,18 39:12
audio 5:9 40:23
August 6:9
automatic 10:23
avail 24:16
Avery 31:17
Award 6:18,19,20,21
awards 6:18
aware 46:24 53:18
awareness 37:3
Aye 4:13,14 7:22,23 53:14,15
 55:16,17 58:6,7 60:12,13 63:10,
 11
Ayes 4:16 7:25 53:17 55:19 58:9
 60:15 63:13

B

back 9:11 24:2 40:25 42:13,14
53:19,24 55:25 58:15 60:20

background 38:12

backlog 33:22 36:16

bad 32:6 59:7

badge 21:24 53:6 54:16 55:10

badly 17:11

ballot 30:12,14,15,18,19,24 31:6,
9,11

Bank 61:1

Bankole 49:20

Banks 2:24 3:10,11,14 4:11
35:23,24 36:3 37:9 48:12,13,17,
20 49:1 54:6,22 55:13 56:8 57:8
58:21 59:24 61:13 62:9

based 40:7 45:17,22

basically 34:3

Batch 56:22

Beaubien 10:6

Beaumont 13:24

Beautiful 24:12

Beckman 31:5,14

begun 5:25 11:16

begin 2:2 35:21 55:25 58:16

behalf 7:8 35:25

behavior 28:17

Bell 2:25 54:7,18,23

beneficial 40:13

benefits 53:6 54:16 55:10 56:22

Bernard 2:22,23 3:23 7:18 15:24,
25 16:13 17:6 18:6 19:5,17
20:12,16,22 27:4 28:22 29:1,2,
18,24 37:14,15 38:17 39:1 42:1,
7,11 44:5,7,14 45:1,3 48:3 54:2,
5,21 56:6 57:6 58:20 59:23
60:25 61:7 62:2,8 63:6

Bernice 21:10

best... 52:3

be... 30:8

bias 40:7

binders 35:3

Bines 55:10 56:22

birthday 24:12

black 14:8,21 50:5

blackest 50:6

blanket 16:11

Blazer 11:9,13,15,23

bless 2:13,14

blind 39:15

Bliss 5:10 8:1,3 16:7,19 18:20,25
19:8,13 20:14 26:1,4,6,11 37:23
39:22,25 40:11,25

block 9:8,14 10:4 11:5 12:19
13:20 14:17

Blossom 5:4 36:6,21 37:22

Blount 26:25 27:22,23,24 28:1

Blount's 33:20,21

board 2:3,4,10 3:19 5:16 7:7
26:18,20 27:24 28:19,20 29:21
34:24,25 35:25 36:2,6 39:3,4
41:25 48:21 52:7 53:4,22 54:14
55:8,22 56:20 57:24 58:13 59:8
60:6,18

board's 28:4

boater 15:11,12

body 22:17

body-worn 50:2

bogus 31:18,22,24

bologna 50:12

bond 14:15

BOPC 3:20 4:8,22 18:16 35:7,9

Bowl 6:21 15:16

bowling 15:14,16

Bowman 30:14 33:15,17

Bowser 5:18,21,22,25 6:1,11,14,
17,23 7:11,15

breakfast 50:12

Brewster 10:15

Brian 5:18,21,22 7:11

bright 32:17

bring 24:2 32:23 40:25 43:21

bringing 18:13,18 33:12

broader 38:15

broken 11:21

brought 49:25

Brown 2:19,20,21,22,24,25 3:1,2,
3,5,6 4:24,25 35:2,7,18 36:6
37:20 42:2 54:3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,
11,19,20,21,22,23,24,25 55:1,2
58:17,18,19,20,21,22,23,24
59:18,21,22,23,24,25 60:1,22,
23,24,25 61:1,2,3,4,16 62:5,6,7,
8,9,11,12,13

brutality 37:3

budget 3:20 4:8

Bureau 3:20 4:8 37:24

burn 22:9

Burton 3:1 26:15,16,17,22 29:9,
11,12,13,14,17 37:18 41:17,19,
20 42:9,22 43:3,4,6,8,12,15
44:4,7,14 45:2,10,25 46:8,11,15,
16,17,19,22,23 47:7,16,18,21
49:5,6,7 51:8,11,13,15,18,20,23,
25 52:3,5,6,10,12,14,16,18,20,
22 54:8,24

Burton... 46:21 52:15

business 35:20 43:7 49:1 51:17,
19 53:2

Byran 28:18

C

Cain 26:24 60:6 61:11,22
Caleb 53:6 54:16
California 50:1
call 17:21 32:14 42:2,19,20
 49:17,18,19 53:24 54:1 57:3
 59:17 61:16
called 29:14 41:24 42:1,4,9,11,
 12,16 45:4 46:20 47:2 49:12,15
calling 45:25
calls 8:15,17,18,20,21,23,25 9:2,
 3,5 55:25 58:15 60:20
cameras 50:2
Cameron 38:2 39:11
Candace 5:3 36:7 37:21
candidate 57:24 59:5,12 60:6
 61:11,22 62:24
can... 43:11
capability 40:21
captain 5:18,21 6:15,16,17,23
 7:10,14 24:16 26:8 38:1 39:10
card 15:13 21:19
cards 21:17 22:18
care 23:3,11 24:5,10 28:23
career 5:25
carjacking 8:9
Carter 3:2 5:11 29:11 54:9,25
 56:10 57:10 58:3,22 59:1,2,3,7,
 22 60:9 61:2 62:11
case 32:21 34:1 36:15
cases 33:23 36:16,17 39:8 40:14
Cash 21:18
catchers 28:5
caught 33:23
causing 12:14 15:7

Cedric 36:3 37:9 56:8 57:8
cell 8:14
center 13:10 15:17 41:6
certificate 15:13
Certificates 6:22
cetera 40:10
chair 3:14 4:1,6,7,25 5:13,18,20
 7:16 16:7,19 18:25 19:8 21:7
 26:15 29:12 30:8,11 35:2,14,22,
 24 37:13 41:17,20 42:13,25 44:5
 45:2,9,25 48:13 49:5 50:23 51:8,
 18 53:7 55:5,24 56:4,17 57:4,21
 58:15 59:1 60:3,20 61:17 62:9,
 16 63:4
Chair's 27:12
Chairman 20:13 30:1 37:15 38:9
 45:18 48:14 51:11,13,20,25
 52:24
chairperson 2:1,17,20,21 3:7,12,
 15,25 4:12,15 5:14 7:16,20,24
 15:23 17:25 18:2,4,21 19:3,11,
 14,17 20:4,14,19 21:2,8,13
 22:20,22 24:8,11 25:12,16,18
 26:2,4,14,16,21 27:7,12,18,21,
 25 28:1,25 29:10,13,16,25 30:3,
 10,17 32:4 33:14,16 34:21 35:6,
 19 36:3 37:9,10 38:16 41:18,21
 42:8,19 43:1,14 44:5,13,16,20,
 23 45:11 46:4,10,13,21,23 47:3,
 8,17,19,22 48:11,16,19,23 49:3,
 6,21 50:20 51:7,10,12,15,19,22
 52:2,4,8,12,15,17,19,22 53:1,10,
 12,16 54:3,4,12,19 55:3,14,18,
 24 56:2,4,6,8,10,12,13,15,18,24
 57:1,4,6,8,10,12,14,16,18,21
 58:2,4,8,18,19,25 59:2,6,10,15,
 18,21 60:2,10,14,23,24 61:5,9,
 14,18,20,24 62:4,6,7,14,17,19
 63:3,8,12
change 4:2 62:10
changed 40:1,4
chaplain 2:5
characterized 19:5

charges 14:13
Charnita 21:10
chase 11:18 16:1,4,8,10,12
chases 16:14
chasing 10:21 14:21
cheating 30:21 31:5
checked 9:18
Chevy 11:9,13,15 14:21
Chicago 49:25
Chief 4:22 5:1,9 8:1 15:25 17:16
 19:21 20:6 21:4 23:1 36:4,9
 37:23 39:22 40:11 41:15 48:6
 62:18
Chief's 6:18 59:4,11,19 61:10,21,
 25
children 23:22
Children's 10:9,12
choose 28:22
circumstances 9:23
citations 6:18 8:12
citizen 30:24 31:7 35:13 37:7
citizen's 37:7
citizens 2:9,13 6:24 7:1,8,13
 17:11 35:22,25 36:18,20 43:17,
 20,25
city 2:10,14 6:7 7:2,8 16:4,23
 17:1,3,19,20 18:10,19 23:14,15
 30:20,21 32:22 33:8 43:9,17,20,
 22,23,25 44:2 48:10 50:6,17
city's 31:18,25
Civil 48:4,5 49:17
Civilian 33:18
claim 34:8,9
claiming 34:16
claims 34:19
clarification 20:3,15
clarify 61:19

clarity 21:3 25:1 62:18
class 41:5
clean 22:9
clear 2:7 19:4,18 29:5 34:10
clerk 30:21
clock 27:10
closed 3:18 53:2,18,22 55:6,20, 22 58:11,13 60:4,18
closely 39:17
Coast 15:11
Coleman 22:13
collaborate 39:13
collaborating 38:14
collaboration 38:19
colleagues 51:1,3
collective 18:15
color 49:9
commander 23:1 24:16 25:8,9 26:8
comment 30:6 48:24
commenter 29:25 36:8
commenters 34:22
comments 15:24 29:20 33:21 34:23 48:12
commission 23:25 27:9
commissioner 2:5,7,22,24,25 3:1,2,3,5,6,10,11,14,23,24 4:3, 10,11 7:18,19 15:24,25 16:13 17:6,25 18:3,5,6 19:5,17 20:12, 16,22 26:15,16,17,22 27:4,10 28:8,23,25 29:2,3,9,11,12,13,14, 17,18,24 30:12 32:1,2,5,8 35:17, 23,24 36:3,4 37:14,15,17 39:1 41:17,18,20 42:1,7,9,11,22,25 43:1,2,4,6,7,8,9,12,13,15,16 44:4,7,9,14 45:1,2,3,10,25 46:8, 11,14,16,17,19,21,22,23,24 47:1,7,16,18,21 48:2,3,12,13,17, 20 49:1,5,6,7,12,14 50:4,21,22 51:8,11,13,18,20,23,25 52:3,5,6,

9,10,12,14,15,16,18,20,22,24 53:9,11 54:2,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,13, 18,20,21,22,23,24 55:1,2,12,13 56:2,6,8,10,12,13,17,18,19,25 57:6,8,10,12,14,16 58:1,3,20,21, 22,23,24 59:1,2,3,7,14,22,23,24, 25 60:1,8,9,25 61:1,2,3,4,7,13, 17,19,23 62:2,8,9,11,12,13,16, 21 63:6,7
Commissioner's 5:16 26:18
commissioners 2:3,11,18 4:14 7:7,23 22:21 30:5 35:25 48:18, 21 53:15 55:17 56:1 58:7,16 60:13,21 63:11
commit 20:8 50:13
commitment 7:10
committed 19:7
committee 35:21,22,23 36:1,2,3 37:8,9,11,12,13,14,16,19 39:2 40:11 41:1 44:6,18 46:14,18 47:13 48:1 49:4,18,21 51:3
committing 17:14
communicated 20:14
communication 21:6
communications 35:1,3
communities 6:25 17:8
community 4:23 7:4,12 15:17 34:6 35:9,12 36:5,20 37:22 38:11 40:13 41:12 49:20
company 49:25
complaint 35:13,22 36:1,20 37:4, 8
complaints 32:24 36:17,18,22,23 37:2,5,7
completed 38:16
completely 45:24
completing 15:13
component 40:23
Computer 31:22
concern 40:21

concerned 18:17
concerns 26:19 29:21
concludes 15:22
Conclusion 6:20
condition 9:13 10:10,13 11:25 12:3,6,25
conduct 12:10 15:4
Confinement 6:20
confuse 59:19 62:5
congratulate 7:14
Consent 6:20
consequences 34:8
considered 42:5 62:22
conspiracy 21:22,23
conspire 21:22
constitutional 40:5,25
consummate 7:4
contact 9:25 11:2 26:6
contention 30:4
context 38:15
continue 2:15 16:25 17:2,4 22:2, 11 42:16,24 43:3,4,17 44:25 51:5
continued 19:10
continuing 46:9
contributed 37:4
contributing 37:1
contributions 7:9
control 14:22 15:7
conversation 18:14 21:3
Conyers 49:22
Coordinator 36:5,21 37:22
cops 25:2,15,16
copy 33:20 41:14
corner 44:22

correct 19:13 20:5 44:20,23
48:16

correspondence 31:8

corruption 28:2,20

council 30:22,25 31:19 38:7

Councilman 5:12

Count 5:6

countless 49:13,14

counts 55:4

County 12:16 13:17 14:10,15
32:11 50:11

courage 7:11

Court 14:12

Couzins 11:6

cover 21:23

covering 21:15,22

create 18:8 43:24

created... 46:25

creating 48:9

creator 2:8

crime 8:6,8 9:19,25 11:2 17:14
28:7 38:1 41:6 50:13

criminalizes 49:11

critical 11:3,7 12:6 37:6

critically 8:5

Cromwell 5:5

Crowley 26:24 27:2,5 57:24 59:6,
8,12

crying 2:12

current 36:10,15,17

cuss 25:14,15,16,17

cut 18:12

cuts 11:18

D

Darrell 56:13

Darrice 26:24 59:5 60:6 61:11,22

Darryl 57:14

data 8:6 31:22 37:6 38:1 40:6
41:11

database 31:18,25

date 8:24 9:1,4,5 35:16 36:17

Davis 5:11 30:13 32:1,2,5 38:6
48:21

day 22:10 31:3 49:11

days 8:16 9:2 23:21 36:16

DC 8:1,3 16:7,19 18:20,25 19:8,
13 20:14 26:1,4,6,11 39:25
40:25

dead 20:17

deadly 34:12,13,19

deal 32:12

dealers 24:6

deals 31:22

death 17:23

deceased 13:25 15:1

decent 23:12

decision 63:1

decorum 30:7

dedication 7:3

defense 34:19 49:10

degree 14:13

delays 30:4

department 5:23 6:24 7:1 11:6
14:18 23:24 28:9,16 30:23 31:1,
6,8,15,16,17,20 40:5 48:5 61:8

department's 53:4 54:14 55:8
56:20

departments 38:25

Deputy 5:9 15:25 23:1 37:23
39:22 40:11

derelict 44:1

dereliction 43:3

deserving 6:17

designed 28:16

detect 28:16

Detective 13:12

detectives 9:17,20,21,24 10:18,
19 11:1 12:8,15 13:11,12,16
14:5,6 15:2,3 24:18

Detention 13:10

determine 9:22

determined 10:20 12:9 13:13
14:6 15:3

Detroit 2:3,10,14 5:22,24 6:8,24
7:1,2,7,9,13 9:12 11:3 13:9
15:11 16:2,4,6,8,14,16,17 17:2,
19 18:9,24 19:4,19,25 29:19
30:20 32:16 33:8,18 35:8 43:10,
18,20,22,23 44:1,2 48:10 50:7,
17

Detroiters 17:13

Detroitrewards.tv. 10:1

development 37:24 38:20

dialogue 41:10

didn't 50:13

died 32:10

differentiate 40:19

difficult 33:23

dilemma 48:8

dinner 23:20 50:12

directly 40:3

Director 5:6 38:1

discretion 20:9 27:12

discussed 39:5

discussion 7:21 18:16 23:24
28:14 38:17 40:10 53:13 55:15

57:2 58:5 59:16 60:11 61:15
63:8,9

discussions 41:23

disgraceful 43:10,16 44:3

dispatched 9:8 10:3 11:5 12:19
13:20 14:17

display 7:11

displayed 6:1

disqualified 62:25

disqualify 59:4,8,12 61:11,21

disqualifying 57:25 60:7

disregarded 11:11

disregarding... 43:5

dissemination 40:7

District 2:23,25 6:5 14:12 32:8,9
45:10

disturbing 17:22

document 39:14

Dodge 10:20

doesn't... 44:13

doesn't 44:16

dog 28:5 34:7

domestic 32:12,16

Don 5:7

don't 4:3

Doordash 21:18 22:18

dope 23:3

double 10:2,4 39:15

downstairs 44:12

DPD 5:6 15:16 19:6 21:4 38:20
39:24,25 40:4 57:25 59:9 60:7
61:12,22

DRACO 33:18

Draft 31:3

drag 8:9

dragged 45:8

Drew 5:7

drifting 8:10

drive 10:24 11:12,13,14 12:14
14:18

driver 11:15 12:1

drivers 17:10

driving 10:20,23

drones 22:6

dropped 9:16

dropping 33:1,2

drove 12:12

drug 24:6

due 8:5 36:23

Durango 10:21

Durhal 5:12

duty 43:3 44:1

Dyke 9:9,16

E

early 24:11

East 10:23 11:14 14:18 15:5,6

echo 33:19 51:3

Edge 13:23

Education 15:8

educational 15:11

Edwards 36:9

effective 40:15,17

effectiveness 41:13

ejected 12:4 14:22

Elaine 31:5,14 32:9

Elected 4:23 5:10

Election 31:8

elections 31:5,6,15,16

Elgin 5:5

Ellen 5:6

emphasizing 20:5

employees 28:4

encourage 33:4,5,7

end 22:10 42:20 46:6 47:5 48:2
50:25

endeavors 7:14

enforcement 7:4 8:10

enter 55:6 57:22 58:10 60:4

entered 31:18 53:22 55:22 58:13
60:18

entertains 4:1,7 7:16 53:8 55:6
57:22 60:4 63:4

entire 52:7

entry 31:22

equipment 40:2,22 41:2

Eric 26:25 33:20,21 48:22

Erskine 10:6

eternal 2:7

events 15:18,19,20

eventually 18:11

everyone's 5:15

examples 28:21

excellence 7:10

excited 13:7

excuse 26:1,25 27:23 43:13

excused 3:3

exited 11:15

expectation 20:10 45:16,20

explain 27:6

extremely 28:10

eye 22:19

eyewitness 39:6,7

F

face 14:23
Facebook 15:21
faces 34:8
facial 38:10,16,22,24 48:8 49:8 50:9,16
fact 17:12 23:14 24:1 32:25 43:18
factor 37:2
factual 50:25
fails 55:5 60:3 62:15
fairly 34:9
fall 16:23
falls 31:22
False 31:24
falsely 38:21
familiar 20:1
family 23:20 34:7
fatal 12:8,15 13:18,21 14:15,19 15:3
favor 4:13 7:22 24:4 53:14 55:16 58:6 60:12 63:9
feel 24:19 45:15
Fellow 38:4
felonies 19:2
felony 14:14 16:21 19:15
Ferguson 28:18
file 37:4
filed 36:22
fill 24:19
filled 24:18
finally 15:18 40:19 41:4
find 19:21,23 20:13
findings 30:23

finger 10:11
finished 44:12
firearm 14:14
fired 13:4
Fireworks 6:19
firing 10:16,21,22
flee 11:16
flight 28:5
floor 50:11
Floyd 36:25
flying 22:7
FMR 32:2,5
follow 47:3 48:21 59:3
foot 11:16,17
force 6:13 34:13,20
Ford 6:19 13:22 14:8
form 32:6
forthcoming 35:11
forward 47:25
Foundation 15:15
founder 33:17
Francis 5:1
frankly 16:15
fraud 30:12,19,24
Fred 5:12
freedom 25:13
French 37:25
Friday 10:3 15:8
friends 23:23
Fries 5:7
front 34:7
frustrating 28:10
fulfill 47:12
full 25:23 39:3

fully 34:11
fundraiser 15:14,16
Funeral 6:20
furious 24:1
future 7:13 28:17 32:17

G

Gamble 28:18 48:14
Game 6:19
Gang 6:8
Garden 32:22
general 34:4
General's 31:23
Geneva 9:14
gentlemen 31:13
George 36:25
Germany 31:7,9
gift 21:17,19 22:18
Gina 31:17
give 2:15 25:10
giving 21:17 22:18 30:21
Glenn 55:10 56:22
God 2:7 23:10
Gonzalez 36:8
good 2:1 4:25 8:3 17:9 21:7,8 22:21,22 23:7,9,11,24 24:4 27:24,25 28:21,22,24 32:2 40:17 45:12 48:21 49:10 62:19
Gordon 21:11 24:13 25:13,17,20 26:3,9,12 27:17,20
Grace 11:24 12:2,6
Graduate 38:4
graduating 5:24
grand 8:22
grateful 5:15 23:8

gray 11:14 12:1,4
 great 7:8 48:6
 Greenview 13:20
 Guard 15:11
 guess 54:1
 Guest 36:8
 gunshot 9:11 10:8 12:22 13:23
 guy 26:12
 guys 22:16

H

half 41:7
 hallway 44:15
 handguns 13:6
 Handyside 5:7
 happen 33:25
 happened 21:20 25:20 32:22
 34:15
 happening 30:20 43:25
 happy 24:11
 Harbor 15:10
 hard 47:9,14
 harm 43:25
 haven 18:9
 have... 47:16 52:18
 Hayes 5:3 36:7 37:21
 head 25:9 28:9
 Headquarters 15:10 35:9
 health 8:15
 hear 18:3 22:14 30:16
 heard 19:21 32:3 34:5
 hearing 3:25 4:18,21 7:21 13:3,4
 21:4 37:11 45:18,23 53:13 55:15
 57:2 58:5 59:16 60:11 61:15
 63:8

Heather 38:1 39:10
 heck 23:16
 held 14:14 36:2 37:16
 helicopters 19:22 22:7
 helpful 41:12
 helping 43:23
 Herb 17:18
 here... 26:10
 Hernandez 3:5,24 4:3 7:19 17:25
 18:3,5 35:17 50:21,22 53:9
 54:10,13 55:1 56:12,17,18,19
 57:12 58:1,23 59:14,25 60:8
 61:3,17,19,23 62:12,16,21
 hide 18:11
 high 10:24 12:13 15:6 16:14
 highly 28:13
 hijack 43:5
 hire 33:24
 hiring 57:25 59:9 60:7 61:12,22
 history 13:14
 hold 15:11 28:1 48:24
 holding 15:15,19
 home 13:15 14:1,3 24:23 25:2
 Homes 10:15
 homicide 6:6,8,12 11:10,20
 12:11 14:5,13 15:2 19:1,7,9 20:8
 homicides 8:6 19:1,14
 honoring 5:17,21 28:3,4
 honors 7:9
 hope 24:10 30:6
 Hospital 9:12 10:9,12 11:24 12:2,
 6,25 13:24
 hosting 35:11
 hot 16:25 19:20
 hour 20:24
 hours 41:7

house 9:14 13:2 14:2 22:8 23:3
 HR 5:6 28:14
 Human 3:19 4:8
 hundred 28:12
 hung 25:22
 hurt 17:12

I

idea 28:23
 identification 9:22 39:6
 identifications 39:7
 identified 28:12 38:22
 identify 50:5
 II 5:12 49:23
 illegal 21:23,25 22:14 40:8
 immigrants 31:12
 important 38:11 39:10
 impounded 8:13
 improbable 34:9
 improved 7:12
 inappropriate 29:18,24 40:9
 incarcerated 39:9
 incidences 19:6
 incident 9:23,25 10:1,25 11:2,15
 12:17 13:10,18 14:15 36:25 37:1
 incidentally 34:5
 incidents 9:6 16:1
 includes 36:10
 including 18:16 34:12 49:22
 incoming 35:1,3
 inconvenience 53:20
 incorrectly 37:25
 increase 37:2,5
 index 10:11

indicative 28:17
individual 19:6 20:20
individuals 8:11 10:20 20:11
industry 39:14
information 9:21,24 11:1 15:20
 26:7 31:18,24 41:1
infractions 18:22
injured 8:4,5
injuries 8:5 11:25 12:2 14:24
 17:23
innocent 20:22 50:18
inquire 46:6
insert 33:19
inside 14:1 31:15
Inspector 31:23
instances 16:11
integrity 7:3
Intelligence 6:9
intensive 49:23
interest 48:9
interested 18:5
Interim 5:4
international 30:19
interviews 22:16
into... 45:8
introduction 2:18 4:22 39:11,22
 56:1 58:16 60:21
investigate 9:9 10:4 12:10,20
 13:20
investigated 8:11,13
investigating 22:23,25
investigation 10:25
investigations 32:21
investigative 6:7,10
investigator 5:2,4,5,6 36:4,9,12,
 14

investigators 33:24 36:11,13
invite 49:21
Invocation 2:4
involved 16:1 21:16,21 38:11,22
involving 19:20
issue 17:16 44:17
issued 8:12,14
issues 19:25 49:16 50:6
is... 31:15
items 38:9 51:2
It's 4:12 7:20 18:2 55:14 58:4
 61:14
I'll 54:13 56:19
I've 25:21

J

Jackson 4:4 5:1 30:1 42:6 44:18,
 21,24 45:9,11,12 47:4 57:20
 62:24
jail 14:15 50:11
James 11:5
Janice 31:16
Jasmine 5:3 37:20 41:6
Jerome 36:5,9
Jesus 56:12 57:12
job 22:12 24:19 25:14 31:15
John 12:24 49:22
Jonya 5:3
Judgment 6:21
Julia 38:5 39:16
July 6:8,12
June 35:10 41:16
jurisdiction 16:25 17:9 31:21,24

K

Kahn 38:5
Karen 24:13
Katrina 5:6
key 36:1 49:24
Kia 11:14 12:1,4
kids 32:18
kill 32:16 34:16
killer 34:8
kind 17:17 18:18
kinds 19:22
King... 59:5
knew 44:8
Knodell 12:19
knowing 28:11
knowledge 6:2 30:25
Koren 26:23 57:24 59:6,7,12

L

Labelle 5:2
Ladon 5:11 38:6
lady 32:17
Lamonica 41:9
Lamoreaux 37:24 38:9,12,17
language 25:12 40:2,4
Large 48:14
Lastly 28:18
law 7:4 30:22 31:1,20 38:3,21
 41:4 48:4,5
lawn 34:7
lawsuits 43:24
lead 31:16 49:17
leader 6:7

Leaders 4:24
leadership 2:14 6:2 48:6
leads 62:23
learned 11:8 14:20
leave 14:8 53:5 54:15 55:9 56:21
left 10:8 13:23 42:10 45:4,5
 46:19,24 47:10
left... 46:20
leg 10:8
legal 34:6,12 49:10
legally 19:19
lengthy 47:24
letters 41:14,15
levels 32:15
liability 19:19
Liberty 5:18 56:4 57:4
Lieutenant 6:12,14 36:7
life 7:12 22:17 23:9
lifelong 7:9
light 11:12
limit 24:20
limits 16:23
Linda 2:22,23 28:21 56:6 57:6
lineups 39:6,7
Lisa 56:10 57:10
listed 9:13 10:9,12 11:24 12:3,6,
 25
listen 22:12 28:6 40:23
litigation 19:20
live 22:6 23:9
lived 23:8
lives 16:17 31:6
living 31:12,13
Livonia 15:17
locating 9:19

location 14:9 35:11
Logic 11:12 12:14
long 13:14 16:24 17:3 23:8,11
Lord 2:11 23:7
lost 14:22 15:7 16:18 41:25
 48:14
lot 13:15 17:22
louder 27:4
love 2:8 25:23
loyalty 7:2
lunch 50:12
lung 12:5
lying 14:23 30:21 31:2,3

M

Mack 10:24
made 13:7 22:13 38:13 45:15,22
 46:24 62:2 63:2
major 40:21
make 8:1 26:7 32:20 33:24,25
 34:14 35:14 45:6 54:13 56:19
male 10:7,11
Malibu 14:21
man 21:16,18
management 28:11,15
Marie 5:10
mark 5:9 37:23 39:22 42:15
Mary 15:16 31:5,14
Master 15:10
math 50:18
matter 20:15 24:5 30:7 41:1
 43:18 47:25
matters 31:22
mayor's 22:24 30:22 31:1,19
MCL 53:4 55:7 57:23 60:5

meantime 23:6
Media 5:7
Medic 9:11 10:9 12:23 13:24
 14:25
medical 12:23 53:6 54:15 55:9
 56:21
medication 29:7,23
medics 10:7 11:24 12:3,24
meet 41:23
meeting 2:2 5:15 26:7,19 30:4
 35:7,9,12,13,15 36:2 37:8,16
 39:4 41:15 42:15,16,23 43:22
 44:6,12,24 45:3,7,10,24 46:9,22
 47:5 51:5 53:24 55:25 58:15
 60:20 63:14,19
meetings 24:3 43:4,5 49:14 53:3
 55:7 57:23 60:5
member 26:19 30:22,25 38:7
members 16:9 36:3 49:20
memorandum 50:24
mental 8:15,16,18,19
mention 32:23
mercy 2:9
message 24:2
Metropolitan 5:24
mic 18:1
Michael 50:10
Michigan 12:12 48:4 49:13 50:7
Mile 15:5
miles 20:24
minds 2:7
mindset 18:15
minister 2:12 26:25 27:22,24
 28:1 33:20 48:22
minor 11:18,25 12:1
minute 42:1,3,11,15 53:17 55:20
 58:10

minutes 4:19,21 27:7 45:7 46:1
 47:4,24 60:16
misconduct 28:8,10,13,18 36:19
misidentification 50:17
misidentified 49:9 50:8,15,19
mistreated 33:2
Moening 38:3
Molly 38:3
Monday 11:4 13:16
month 22:24
monthly 35:11
months 21:21 24:14 31:13
Moore 3:3
motion 4:1,4,7 7:16 34:23 42:6
 45:14,15,18,21 53:8 54:13 55:5,
 6,19 56:16,19 57:21,22 58:9,25
 59:10,19 60:3,4,15 61:6,7,10,20
 62:2,15,24 63:4,13
motions 45:12,14,21
Motor 15:8
move 2:18 3:8 4:10,16,19,22
 5:16 7:25 21:6 34:25 35:20
 37:12 39:2 47:25 51:16 53:2,9
 63:6
moved 3:23 4:12 7:18,20 25:24
 53:12 55:12,14 57:1 58:1,4
 59:15,17 60:8,10 61:14
Moving 3:16 8:6,15
multiple 14:24
murder 14:13 34:15
Murphy 5:5

N

nation 38:24
National 15:18,19 49:18
natural 34:12
nature 50:2

Neff 9:16
negligence 47:12
neighborhood 22:25 24:7
neighborhoods 33:10
neighboring 6:25
neighbors 13:13
net 10:24
Network 49:19
Next... 52:14
NFL 31:3
nice 34:20
Nichols 37:1
noise 51:6
non-debatable 42:5,18
non-fatal 8:7 9:7,9 10:5 12:18,20
non-suggestive 39:15
nonfatal 10:2
nonviolent 20:6
note 15:8 33:22 35:14 48:2 50:25
notified 9:18 10:18 12:8 13:12
 14:6 15:3
noting 3:17 34:23
number 9:6 10:1,7,10 12:17
 13:18 14:15 32:24,25 36:22,23,
 24 40:15 50:3 53:7

O

oath 21:25
objection 3:21,25 4:18,20
observed 9:10 10:6 12:21 13:22
 14:23
obsessed 29:5
occupied 11:10
occur 45:21
occurred 38:9
OCI 21:19 26:17 36:10,18,23
October 6:3,5
offered 37:13
office 5:10,12 12:17 13:17 14:10
 30:22 31:1,20,23 32:11
officer 5:25 6:1,2 21:24 28:3,8,10
 32:9,16 53:6 54:16 55:10 56:22
officers 5:17 8:4,5 9:8,9,18 10:3,
 5,17 11:5,8,16,17 12:7,19,21,22
 13:7,8,10,19,21 14:2,4,17,20
 15:1 16:2 20:9 21:15,21 22:14,
 18 28:3,12,17 32:25 33:1,3,4,5,
 6,8,9,12
official 41:14
Officials 4:23 5:10
of... 43:7 44:17
OIG 31:21
Oliver 50:10
on-duty 8:5
onboarded 36:14
online 46:2
open 2:6 38:17 53:3,25 55:7,25
 57:23 60:5
opened 40:10
Operations 6:10
opportunity 30:5
opposed 4:15 7:24 53:16 55:18
 58:8 60:14 63:12
opposite 18:7
oral 21:6
order 22:8 29:9,14,16,17 30:2
 43:12 44:4 45:13,14,19,22
 47:19,22 51:16,22 52:4,8,13,17,
 19,23 58:16 60:21
ordered 14:2
order... 43:6,8 52:2
ordinance 40:4
or... 27:6

outcomes 40:16
 Outer 11:13,14 14:18 15:6
 outlines 39:23
 outreach 15:18
 outstanding 29:2
 Overdose 9:1
 Oversight 33:18
 overturn 63:1

P

P.M. 63:19
 packet 39:4
 parked 23:4 44:11
 parking 13:14
 Parks 6:19
 parliamentary 5:1 42:4 46:1
 62:20
 part 8:8 47:12
 Participants 15:12
 participated 37:18
 participating 21:25
 partner 32:12,16
 pass 34:23
 passenger 11:20 12:4,11 13:22
 passengers 11:23
 passes 55:19 57:21 58:9 60:15
 63:13
 past 8:16 19:19,25 36:16 41:21
 42:15
 paste 33:20
 patience 63:14
 Patillo 5:7
 pay 54:15 55:9 56:21
 payable 53:5
 PD 11:19,22 16:20

people 17:8 20:23 22:18 23:19
 25:3 33:4 39:8 43:9,21,22 44:2,
 10,18,21 45:3 47:18 48:10 50:15
 perfect 23:10
 period 16:12 22:17
 permanently 59:4,11 61:11
 perpetrating 28:13
 person 19:23 20:8,23 29:23
 31:10 34:6,19 41:4 47:11 48:7
 49:9 50:5,18
 person's 20:17 34:11
 personally 40:24
 Personnel 35:15
 persons 37:18
 phones 8:14
 pistol 10:22
 pivotal 37:5
 played 34:5
 plea 32:11
 PM 2:2 10:3 11:4 12:18 14:17
 15:9,14,15 35:8,10 37:9 41:16
 point 29:9,14,16,17 30:2,3 42:23
 43:6,8,12 44:4 47:19,22
 police 2:3,11 4:23 5:16,23,24
 6:2,24 7:1,7 8:1 11:4,6,7,9 12:9,
 13 14:16,18,19,21 15:4,18,20
 16:8,17 21:15,21,24 22:14,17
 23:17,24 24:5,17,25 25:4,7,14,
 22 26:18 28:3,8,9,12,16 32:8,9,
 16,25 33:1,3,8 35:25 36:5,20
 37:3,22 38:25 40:5 48:6 53:6
 54:16 55:10 56:22 61:8
 policies 16:20 34:18 43:19
 49:22,24 50:3
 policing 40:7
 policy 16:5,8,11,22,23 19:4 34:4,
 10 37:13,16 38:10,13,20,23
 39:2,5,10,11,13,17,18,20 40:7,9,
 10 41:21,22 43:24 46:2 48:1,9
 49:4,16,17,21 50:24

poor 50:6
 Porsche 50:13
 portion 50:25
 positions 36:14
 positive 15:7
 possibly 18:17
 post 49:19
 posted 46:3
 postpone 4:4,8 21:3 34:24
 postponed 4:5
 poverty 49:11,19
 practice 39:19
 practices 39:14,15
 pray 2:16
 prayer 2:6
 precarious 17:10,11
 Precinct 5:25 6:4,15 9:17 10:18,
 19 12:7 13:11,12 14:4 15:1
 24:15 25:23 35:10 53:7 54:17
 55:11 56:23
 precinct's 15:21
 precincts 15:19 32:8
 Precinct's 6:16
 preparing 12:15
 present 2:23,24,25 3:5,6 37:17,
 19,23 44:21 51:5 54:5,6,7,8,9,
 10,11 56:7,9,13,14 58:20,21,22,
 23,24 60:25 61:1,3,4
 presentation 3:20 8:2
 presentations 34:24
 preserved 10:18 12:7 13:11 14:5
 15:2
 pressing 51:2
 Pressley 2:1,17,20 3:7,12,15,25
 4:12,15 5:14 7:16,20,24 15:23
 17:25 18:2,4,21 19:3,11,14,17
 20:4,14,19 21:2,8,13 22:20,22
 24:8,11 25:12,16,18 26:2,4,14,

16,21 27:7,12,18,21,25 28:1,25
29:10,13,16,25 30:3,10,17 32:4
33:14,16 34:21 35:6,19 37:10
41:18 42:8,19 43:1,14 44:5,13,
16,20,23 45:11 46:4,10,13,21,23
47:3,8,17,19,22 48:11,16,19,23
49:6 50:20 51:7,10,12,15,19,22
52:2,4,8,12,15,17,19,22 53:1,10,
12,16 54:3,12,19 55:3,14,18,24
56:2,4,6,8,10,12,13,15,18,24
57:1,4,6,8,10,12,14,16,17,18,21
58:2,4,8,18,25 59:2,6,10,15,18
60:2,10,14,23 61:5,9,14,18,20,
24 62:4,6,14,17,19 63:3,8,12

prevent 43:24

principal 39:7

prior 45:7

private 24:22

probable 28:13

probation 32:13,18,19

problem 3:15 17:24 27:21

problems 40:18

proceed 61:8

Proceeds 15:17

process 18:8,9 39:18 57:25 59:9,
13 60:7 61:12

processed 36:18

processes 61:22

professional 7:5 37:24

professionalism 7:2

Professor 38:2 41:5

program 15:13

programs 15:18

progress 8:21

promoted 6:3,11

prompt 30:15

pronounced 13:25 14:25

properly 4:12 7:20 53:12 55:14
57:1 58:4 59:15 60:10 61:14

property 24:23,24 25:6

Prosecutor's 12:17 13:17 14:10
32:11

proud 16:15

provide 9:21 40:15

provided 12:23 36:10,21 38:12,
15 39:11,22 50:24

public 7:10 15:9,15 23:2 26:22
27:15 29:19,20,25 30:5 31:2,3
34:22 35:8 36:8 37:3 49:22
53:18

punctured 12:5

pursuant 51:24 53:3 55:6 57:22
60:4

pursue 16:9,22 17:2,5,8 19:6,24

pursuing 11:9 20:18

pursuit 11:4,7,11 14:16,19 16:21
17:1,4 18:12 19:10 20:10 23:14

pursuits 18:22,23 19:20 20:7

push 3:19 4:5

pushing 33:12

put 23:2

puts 17:14

Q

quality 7:12

Quantez 56:2 57:16

question 16:15 18:6 21:1 23:13
42:3 44:5 62:19

questions 15:24 18:21 21:4
25:22 28:9 37:11 38:17 40:12,25
48:1,12 49:4 50:21

quick 51:8,14

quick... 52:1

Quinn 5:8

quorum 3:8 41:25 42:10,17,20,
23 44:10,18 45:6,13,16,19,20,
22,23 46:9,12,13,17 56:16 61:5

R

race 23:15 52:20

racing 8:10

racism 50:4,9

raise 17:16

raised 17:16 37:3 40:12 49:8

raises 40:24

Ramis 38:4,18 39:11

ran 10:17

rank 6:3,11

rape 21:15,22

raped 21:16,18 22:5

rate 10:25 12:13 15:6

re-interviewed 9:20

read 5:19

real 41:6 51:8,9,14 52:1

realized 21:14

reason 21:14 29:5 39:8

reasonable 45:16,17

Rebecca 38:2

receive 15:12

received 10:8 11:18 21:18

Receiving 9:12

recently 32:10 34:4 36:13

recess 42:1,3,11 44:8 45:15,18,
21 53:17 55:20 58:10

recipient 6:17

recognition 38:10,16,22,25 48:8
49:9 50:9,16

recognized 43:14 47:8,17,20,23
51:10,12,16,23 52:25 53:1

recognizes 7:9

recommendation 59:4,11,20
61:10,21,25 62:18

record 29:10 31:2,4 36:22,23,24
 40:9,22 41:8
recorded 36:19
red 11:11
reestablished 44:10 45:23
reference 50:23
referenced 40:8
referring 29:22
refine 39:10
reflect 29:10
regular 19:15 33:3,5
regulate 16:19
regulating 38:24
reject 61:10,21,24
related 8:15 9:2
Relations 36:5,20 37:22
remain 36:14
remained 6:15
repetition 33:20
replacing 48:18
report 5:17 8:1 15:22 21:5,19
 28:14 30:24 31:1 34:25 35:22
 36:9,19 37:11,12,13 39:21,23
 40:3,6,11 49:4,24
reported 13:3,5 40:25
reports 22:15 24:17 28:7 35:21
represent 39:14
Representative 5:11
Representatives 4:23
request 26:21 47:4 53:4 54:14
 55:8 56:20
requests 40:12 47:23
reserve 32:24,25 33:4,5,12
reserved 33:8
resident 29:19,24
residents 29:20 33:18

resign 28:19
resigned 48:15
resolution 5:17,19,21 7:17,25
 28:3
resolved 7:6 34:2
resources 3:20 4:8 40:18 49:10
respect 30:7
respected 7:3
respectful 23:12
respond 30:5
responded 9:18
response 24:4
responsibility 47:13
responsible 28:2
restart 27:10
resulting 11:7 14:19
retaliate 25:3
retention 40:6,9
retiring 5:18
returned 6:12
reversed 39:8
review 12:17 13:17 14:11 39:3
 46:1,2 47:4
reviewed 13:18 16:1 47:24
revision 38:14,20 39:13,18
revisions 38:13
revisions... 38:13
revolutionary 43:21
Rewards 11:3
Rights 48:4,5 49:17
risk 17:15 28:11,15
roads 31:15
robberies 8:8
Robert 36:6 37:20 38:21 42:2
 50:10

Robichaud 38:2
Robichaud's 41:5
roll 54:1 57:3 59:17 61:16
room 15:9 53:18 55:20 58:10
Rosa 6:19
Roy 28:18 48:14
rule 30:1
rules 38:15

S

safety 15:8,10,12,15 35:8
sandwiches 50:12
Saturday 15:14
say... 51:21
scared 31:19
scene 9:10,18,19 10:5,18 11:8,
 19,22 12:7,21,23 13:8,11,21
 14:1,5,20,25 15:2 45:5
schedule 40:10
scheduled 35:12 41:15
school 23:23 38:3,4,6,21 48:5
Scotty 30:13 33:17
seat 11:20 13:22
seconded 7:21 42:21 53:13
seconds 51:11,13
Secretary 2:19 4:24 34:25 36:6
 37:20 42:2
Section 6:6 14:6 53:3 55:7 57:23
 60:5
secured 14:2
seized 8:14
self- 34:18
self-defense 34:9,11,16
send 41:14
senior 36:12

sense 34:4
September 5:23
sequential 39:15
sergeant 5:8 6:3,4,7,11 32:9,17
serve 47:13
served 6:23 7:1
service 5:7 7:10 8:16,17,19,23,
24,25 9:3,5 10:24 11:12 12:14
serviced 8:18,19,20,21,22,23 9:3
session 53:3,22,24,25 55:6,20,
22,25 57:22 58:11,13 60:4,18
sessions 3:18 53:19
set 53:17 55:20 58:10
share 27:8 29:21
shared 26:19 38:19 39:12
sharing 40:6
Sheila 41:9
shelter 22:6,7
Sherwood 15:5
she's 25:9
shit 25:11
shooting 9:7,9,15,17 10:2,5,19
12:18,20 13:6,8,19,21 14:7 25:1
shootings 8:7
short 11:17
shot 9:14 10:11,17 13:1 14:9
32:10
shots 10:16,21 13:4
show 24:21,24 40:17
shown 28:19
side 18:7
sides 25:4
sidewalk 14:24
sideways 23:4
sign 2:5

signed 14:11
Significant 9:6
signify 4:13 7:22 53:14 55:16
58:6 60:12 63:9
similar 18:6
simply 44:8
Sinai 11:23 12:2,6
Sincerely 37:9
single 28:7
Sir 26:23
sister 17:7
sit 22:12,15 28:6
Sitting 5:9
situation 17:11 27:6
skills 6:2
Skylar 15:9
slaughtered 34:7
slept 50:10
Smith 2:21 5:19,20 21:10 22:21,
23 24:9 36:4 54:4,20 56:5 57:5
58:19 59:21 60:24 62:7 63:7
solution 18:17
somebody's 20:16
son's 22:25
sons 23:23
sort 33:21
south 11:12 12:13
Southfield 11:6,9,16,17,19,22
12:9,12,13 16:3,16,20
speak 22:2 26:8 27:4 33:15 47:12
speaker 21:9 22:20 26:22,23
30:13
speakers 21:9 36:8
speaking 7:8 22:1 27:16 48:25
special 41:8
specific 40:14

specification 39:21,23 40:3,5
specifications 41:2
spectator 8:14
speech 22:24 25:13
speed 10:25 12:13 15:6 16:14
spirit 7:12
spoke 29:19 47:21
spot 33:21
squad 12:8,15 15:3
squarely 31:23
St 12:24
stable 9:13 10:10,12 12:25
staff 4:22 38:4,18 39:12
staffing 36:10
stand 23:17 31:12
Starr 36:8
start 8:3 18:18 32:5
started 10:16 18:23
starts 25:9
state 5:11 29:15 38:2,3 49:15
stated 9:13 10:14 13:1 14:1
21:17 38:14 39:25 42:6
States 50:14
stating 39:23
stating... 46:10
stay 22:7
stayed 45:7
Stephanie 5:2
Stephen 37:24 38:9,12
stepped 51:4
stipulations 16:9
stop 12:10 15:4 16:22 17:4 19:9
stoppers 9:25 11:2
stops 8:12 19:12

street 9:16 10:4,15 13:3 31:11
33:10

strong 34:18

struck 11:13

student 38:5

stuff 19:23 22:13 32:18

subcommittee 41:21,22 46:2

subject 20:23 29:3

Submit 52:16

submitted 12:16 13:16 14:10
50:11

suburbs 16:3

successful 9:19

sued 43:22,23

suffered 11:21 12:1,5

suffering 9:10 12:22 13:23 14:24

sufficient 63:4

suggest 18:14

suggesting 20:7

suicide 8:20,21

Sunday 12:18 13:19 23:20

Super 6:21

supervising 5:4,5 36:11

supervisor 36:11

support 3:24 7:19 33:6

supposed 27:6

surrounding 9:23

surveillance 6:9 39:21,24,25
40:13,14

suspect 9:22 11:10,18,20 13:1,4,
6,9,13,14 14:1,2,3,7,9,12,14,22,
23 15:1

suspects 10:22 19:1

Sussex 31:11

SUV 10:16,17

system 28:11,16

T

table 41:24 43:23 48:8 49:8 51:4

taking 24:5 37:6

talk 17:20,21 25:5 26:17,20 33:6

talked 23:1 33:3 50:1,4

talking 41:11

Tamara 56:4 57:4

tank 49:19

task 6:13 33:25

Taylor 5:3 37:20 41:6

team 6:7 9:17 10:19

tearing 24:24

techno 50:4,9

technologies 41:13

technology 40:20 41:11

television 34:6

temporary 11:24 12:3

Teresa 5:4 36:6,21 37:22

terms 39:14

thanking 41:14 51:3

that... 29:15

That's 20:12 63:3

therefore... 46:16

there... 47:16 53:25

the... 48:25

thigh 13:23

thing 20:4 23:20 27:22

things 2:8 38:8 50:2

Thirdly 40:18

Thompson 49:20

thought 18:8,9 27:15

threat 8:22

Thursday 9:7 35:7,10

tickets 8:14

time 11:20 19:18,24 21:5 22:1,4
24:8,10 25:19 26:2,4 27:3 28:4
34:16 41:6,9 44:11,15 45:17,19
46:3 49:24 53:2

times 26:9 32:10 40:16 49:13,14

timestamp 31:4

tirelessly 6:23

today 2:5 3:18 25:9 28:14 37:23

today's 5:15 63:14

told 25:8 26:9

tool 40:17

topic 18:13

tore 24:23

torn 25:2,6

total 8:8,17,22 36:15

totally 29:18

tour 41:4,7

toured 41:6

to... 4:3 51:24 62:3

traffic 8:12 12:10 15:4 19:9,11,15
20:6

Training 35:15

transferred 6:6,13

transported 9:11 10:9,12 11:23
12:2,5,24 13:9,24

traveling 11:12,14

treat 43:17

treated 10:7 33:13

tremendous 6:1 19:18

trends 36:20

trucks 23:4

Tuesday 14:11 21:20 35:13 37:8
41:23

TV 11:3

two-thirds 57:19

type 17:18

Tyree 37:1

Tyrone 5:11

U

ultimately 17:13

unable 9:20

unclear01:11:15 53:11

uncomfortable 28:20

understand 17:14 20:2 22:4
23:13 41:12

understanding 16:13 17:7,18
18:25 20:12 37:7 41:10 42:17

Understood 18:20

Underwood 5:3 21:7,9 26:23
27:14,22 30:8,11 32:1

unfilled 36:14

unfinished 35:20

unfortunate 29:4

unintentionally 18:8

Unit 6:18 13:12 15:10

United 50:14

University 38:3 48:4 49:13,15

unmute 30:15

unwavering 7:11

UOM 39:16

update 8:4 36:10,22

updated 40:20

updates 36:1

updating 40:2

usage 39:24 40:19

usages 40:16

utterance 13:8

V

vacant 13:15

valid 45:24

van 9:8,16 39:21,24 40:2,13,14,
16,19,21

vans 40:1

vehicle 9:15 10:23 11:3,11,16
12:4,10,12,14 14:16,22,23 15:5,
7 16:10

vehicles 8:13 13:15

vein 18:22

verification 34:14

vetting 34:18

Vice 2:21 5:18,20 54:4 56:4 57:4
58:19 59:21 60:24 62:7

victim 9:10,12,13,20 10:2,7,10
12:5,22,24 13:1,3,5,13,22,24
14:7,8

victim's 13:15

victimized 48:7

victims 10:6,14,16,21

video 5:8 24:24 25:7 31:4 46:2

view 40:22

violated 22:17

violates 46:8

violations 20:6

violence 20:21

violent 8:8,17,18,19 19:2,15

vote 55:5 57:3 59:17 61:16 62:14

voted 39:1 42:21

voter 30:12,18,19,24

votes 55:3,4 57:18,19 60:2,3
62:15

W

Wadood 38:4,18 39:12,16

waited 44:11

waiting 25:1

wake 49:11

walk 28:21 43:4 44:2 51:1

walked 13:7 42:12 44:7

Walker 31:17

walking 3:13 10:14

wanted 11:10,11 12:11 19:4 26:5
27:15

Warfield 5:2 36:5,9

warrant 12:16 13:16,17 14:9,11

Warren 14:18,20 15:4 16:4,17,20

waste 28:4

Wayne 12:16 13:17 14:10,15
32:11 38:2,3 41:4 49:15 50:11

weapon 10:23 24:21,23

weapons 14:14

Wednesday 14:16 35:15

week 2:4 3:21 4:5,9 15:18,20
21:14,17 23:7 39:20

week's 2:2

weekend 8:10

weeks 22:15

week's 35:14

weigh 49:16,22

West 6:10 10:4,15 11:14

Western 6:5

white 10:16,20 11:9,13,15,23

White's 62:18

widely 7:3

William 30:13 48:21

Williams 21:10,12,14 32:10

38:21 39:17 41:9 50:10 53:6
54:16

Winfrey 31:16

Wingswept 37:5

wisdom 2:15

Witnesses 13:1,3,5,25

woman 22:4 24:24 25:8 26:13

Woods 2:6,7 3:6 4:10 23:21
27:10 36:4 37:17 39:1 42:25
43:1,2,7,9,13,16 44:9 46:25 47:1
48:2 52:24 54:11 55:2,12 56:14,
25 57:14 58:24 60:1 61:4 62:13

Woodworth 50:14

word 2:6 28:7

work 2:16

worked 39:16

working 18:1

works 27:2,5

worth 18:13

wound 9:11 10:8 13:23

wounds 12:22

written 25:18,21

wrong 32:15

wrongdoing 18:10

wrongfully 39:9

wrote 49:23

Wyatt 17:18

X

XL 6:21

Y

yard 23:5

year 8:24,25 9:4,5 21:21 24:14
29:6 34:1,3 36:17

years 6:25 24:12 25:2 32:12,18

young 22:13 24:12 32:9,17 41:9

your... 46:7 52:16

You're 52:19

You've 43:14

Z

zoom 26:25 27:1 30:11 31:4
47:18